
202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 1

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
+ + + + +
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD
+ + + + +
MEETING

þ----------------------------»
IN THE MATTER OF:            :
                             :
Tropicalia Project, LLC      :
t/a Bossa Brazilian Bistro   : Protest
2463 18th Street, NW         : Hearing
Retailer CR                  : (Status)
License No. 84505            :
Renewal Application          :
Case No. 13-PRO-00032        :
þ----------------------------¼

            October 9, 2013
            The Alcoholic Beverage Control
Board met in Alcoholic Beverage Control
Hearing Room, Reeves Building, 2000 14th
Street N.W., Washington, D.C., Chairperson
Ruthanne Miller presiding.

PRESENT:
RUTHANNE MILLER, Chairperson
NICK ALBERTI, Member
DONALD BROOKS, Member 
HERMAN JONES, Member
MICHAEL SILVERSTEIN, Member

ALSO PRESENT:
Kofi Apraku, Investigator, ABRA
Richard Bianco, Counsel for Applicant
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1               P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

2                                      (1:37 P.m.)

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Good

4 afternoon.  The Board's back on the record,

5 with Case Number 13-PRO-00032, Bossa Brazilian

6 Bistro, located at 2463 18th Street, N.W.,

7 license number 84505, and ANC 1C, and this is

8 a protest hearing for a renewal application. 

9 Would the parties introduce themselves for the

10 record?

11             MR. BIANCO:  Members of the Board,

12 Madam Chair, I'm Richard Bianco, I'm Counsel

13 for the Applicant.  With me, I have Wagner

14 Depinho, who is the principal owner of

15 Tropicalia, LLC --

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

17             MR. BIANCO:  -- trading as Bossa

18 Brazilian Bistro.

19             MR. JAMES:  Good afternoon,

20 Members of the Board.  Denis James

21 representing Kalorama Citizens' Association.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Good
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1 afternoon.  Before we start this hearing, I

2 know that we do have a motion to dismiss.  I

3 don't know if we have any other preliminary

4 matters that need to come to our attention,

5 before dealing with that.

6             MR. BIANCO:  I don't have any,

7 other than our motion to dismiss, I don't have

8 any other comment.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So the

10 Licensee has filed a motion to dismiss for

11 lack of standing.  I'll paraphrase, on the

12 grounds that KCA didn't give ten-days notice

13 of the meeting, at which they voted to, I

14 guess, oppose the application.  Okay.  So I

15 think that's fairly straightforward.  And the

16 Licensee looks to 25-6013(b), correct?

17             MR. BIANCO:  Yes.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Now, if you

19 wish to say anything more at this point, you

20 can, we do have the motion.  We didn't get an

21 opposition yet, from Mr. James, and so I was

22 going to turn to Mr. James momentarily.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  Just very briefly, I

2 don't want to go back over what we already

3 provided in writing, but it's our position

4 that the statutory language on standing is

5 mandatory.

6             There's no dispute that it wasn't

7 complied with here, therefore, it's our

8 contention that the protest needs to be

9 dismissed.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Mr.

11 James, would you like to speak to it?

12             MR. JAMES:  Well, Mr. Bianco has

13 the citation of law incorrect.  And he has the

14 former section of 25-6013(b), where it says

15 ten days, and that's been changed by the 2012

16 Omnibus to seven days.

17             And all of the documents that the

18 Kalorama Citizens gave to the Board, under the

19 subpoena, proved that we acted within the

20 Code.

21             We submitted our protest letter,

22 our resolution, our minutes, emails of notice
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1 to the Licensee, Wagner Depinho, and in

2 addition to that, our redacted membership

3 list, to prove that we had reached our quorum.

4             And there's absolutely, it's a

5 baseless charge.  There's absolutely no

6 evidence that we did not comply with the Code. 

7 We went far beyond, what is required by the

8 Code, to satisfy the Board's concerns in this

9 matter.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Bianco?

11             MR. BIANCO:  Our citation is from

12 the 2013 D.C. Code, as set forth on Lexis.  We

13 don't make a citation in the Act, we make

14 citations in the actual codified D.C. Law,

15 which is what's binding in this case.

16             And we contend that our citation

17 is valid, mandatory, should be credited, and

18 the protest dismissed at this point.

19             MR. JAMES:  If I'm allowed to

20 speak at this juncture?  I mean, the 2012

21 Omnibus took effect in January 2013.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I'm trying to
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1 look at the exact language.  Do you have the

2 language, Mr. James?

3             MR. JAMES:  No, I don't.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

5             MR. JAMES:  I was hoping it would

6 exist somewhere behind the dais.

7             (Off the record comments)

8             MR. JAMES:  If I might further

9 respond?

10             MR. BIANCO:  Just so I'm clear,

11 Mr. James, what exactly are you referring to,

12 what Act, and what statute?  Because you don't

13 have it to present to us.

14             So I think we need, on the record,

15 an exact citation of the basis for your

16 argument.  So I'd like to have Mr. James tell

17 us what it is, exactly.

18             MR. JAMES:  25-6013(b) was amended

19 in the 2012 Alcoholic Beverage Omnibus Act. 

20 The Act, I'm not sure of the precise name, but

21 the 2012 Omnibus Act on Alcoholic Beverages,

22 which took effect in mid-January 2013.
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1             It was amended by changing, with

2 notice of the meeting being given to the

3 Applicant and the members of the voting body,

4 seven days prior to a meeting, as opposed to

5 ten days, and the language of notice being

6 given to the voting body and the applicant, is

7 new.

8             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.

9             (Off the record comments)

10             MR. JAMES:  It's the same section

11 of the Code, they didn't --

12             (Crosstalk)

13             MR. BIANCO:  I just want to clear

14 that up --

15             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

16             MR. BIANCO:  -- so that we are all

17 on the same page.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  No, I

19 think Mr. James may be right on this.  I was

20 trying to double check the law.  And, Mr.

21 Bianco, what you cited was in the Code,

22 basically?
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1             MR. BIANCO:  It is, as of

2 yesterday, according to the D.C. Counsel and

3 Lexis, it's --

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  They may not

5 have updated it, but it was ten days in that?

6             MR. BIANCO:  That's entirely

7 possible.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Let's see, I

9 have here, 25-6013(b) in the Omnibus,

10 "requires citizens' associations, in order to

11 have standing, to provide the notice of the

12 meeting, in which action is to be taken, at

13 least seven days prior to the meeting, both to

14 its members and to the applicant."  So am I

15 correct, that they did provide seven days, but

16 not ten days' notice?

17             MR. BIANCO:  We would stipulate

18 that they provided seven days, but not ten.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right. 

20 Okay, are you still pursuing your motion to

21 dismiss then?

22             MR. BIANCO:  We are.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Based on

2 failure to do what?

3             MR. BIANCO:  Well, based on the

4 citation provided, the version of the D.C.

5 Code, that it was current, as of yesterday. 

6 If the Board makes a finding that the citation

7 we provided is not current, then we would

8 preserve that issue for appeal.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  I

10 think --

11             MR. ALBERTI:  Can I ask?

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Sure.

13             MR. ALBERTI:  What's the argument

14 that is current?

15             MR. BIANCO:  (No response.)

16             MR. ALBERTI:  You argued that it's

17 current in the D.C. Code --

18             MR. BIANCO:  Yes.

19             MR. ALBERTI:  -- based on, what's

20 your argument for that?

21             MR. BIANCO:  Based on my search of

22 the D.C. Code, as of yesterday, and at the



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 10

1 time the, I'm sorry, the day before yesterday,

2 at the time the motion was submitted, the

3 version of the D.C. Code, provided by Lexis

4 and by the D.C. Counsel, is the citation that

5 I provided.

6             MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Lexis is one

7 thing.  We have no control over Lexis.

8             MR. BIANCO:  Understood.

9             MR. ALBERTI:  I'm not ignoring

10 that.

11             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.

12             MR. ALBERTI:  But your statement,

13 provided by the D.C. Counsel --

14             MR. BIANCO:  Correct.

15             MR. ALBERTI:  What's that mean?

16             MR. BIANCO:  The D.C. Counsel,

17 through their website, which uses license to

18 maintain the --

19             (Off the record comments)

20             MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so through the

21 D.C. Counsel website --

22             MR. BIANCO:  Correct.
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1             MR. ALBERTI:  -- that's where you

2 found it, okay.

3             MR. BIANCO:  Correct.

4             MR. ALBERTI:  So we're clear.

5             MR. BIANCO:  As of two days ago.

6             MR. ALBERTI:  As of when?

7             MR. BIANCO:  Two days ago, the day

8 I submitted the motion.  So it's our position

9 that the law that we provided is the current

10 version.  If that's not the finding, then we

11 would reserve any rights we have to go back

12 and further research the issue.

13             MR. ALBERTI:  Thank you.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, one of

15 our attorney's has handed me Westlaw's, and

16 Westlaw has the updated Code with the seven

17 days, as opposed to the ten days.  So I just

18 want to put that into the record.  Did you

19 print out the Lexis?

20             MR. BIANCO:  I didn't print out

21 the Lexis.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  But I just provided

2 it in the text of the motion.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

4             MR. BIANCO:  From the first.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  All

6 right then, that's unfortunate that, you know,

7 the other side hasn't updated the Code yet.

8             MR. JAMES:  I think I would just

9 like, if I might, say one further thing --

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It'd be

11 unfortunately, but yes.

12             MR. JAMES:  That the whole

13 application was filed, the renewal application

14 was filed after this law had taken place. 

15 And, you know, its progress through its

16 renewal process was all based on any changes

17 that occurred through the Omnibus, the 2012

18 Omnibus.

19             So we were merely complying with

20 what was there, and the licensee should be

21 aware of those new, you know, requirements,

22 just as the protestant should be.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  It would appear,

2 based on what Ms. Jenkins just provided me,

3 under the Credit Section of the last D.C. Law

4 1913, I'm sorry, 19-310, which isn't made more

5 specific here, but I assume is the amendment

6 that we're discussing, since the previous

7 amendment is from 2007.

8             According to this document, the

9 most recent amendment took effect May 1, 2013,

10 which is following the application of protest

11 in this case.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay,

13 anything else?

14             MR. BIANCO:  No, thank you.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, then

16 the Board is ready to rule on the motion to

17 dismiss.

18             (Off the record comments)

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, yes,

20 not ready, okay.

21             MEMBER JONES:  I guess, maybe I

22 wasn't clear on, I thought there was going to
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1 be a wrap-up or a follow-up, but he made a

2 statement.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

4             MR. BIANCO:  I did.

5             MEMBER JONES:  Can you tie that

6 statement to whether, a new motion, or your

7 standing motion?

8             MR. BIANCO:  This is asking --

9             MEMBER JONES:  Or is it just a

10 statement for information purposes?

11             MR. BIANCO:  This is as to my

12 present motion.

13             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

14             MR. BIANCO:  According to this

15 document that Ms. Jenkins, the Board's

16 attorney, just handed me, it has several links

17 that you can click on.

18             But the most recent amendment to

19 this section, according to the credit section

20 at the bottom of this document, states May

21 1st, 2013, which is subsequent to the renewal

22 in this case, thus the older version of ten



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 15

1 days would cover.

2             MEMBER JONES:  And why?

3             MR. BIANCO:  Well, because this

4 law has, according to this document, okay,

5 without the ability to do further research on

6 this, but if the amendment didn't take effect

7 until May 1st, and KCA's meeting to protest

8 took place on April the 18th, then the old

9 version of the Act would still be in effect,

10 requiring a ten-day notice, and not the new

11 version of the Act in a retroactive manner.

12             So again, without the ability to

13 look into this further, as this is just being

14 brought to our attention for the first time,

15 right now, based on the document that was just

16 handed me, it would appear that the amendment

17 took effect in May 1st, 2013.

18             I don't have a great deal of

19 background on the 2012 Omnibus Act, but I do

20 know, from the date of passage until the

21 effective date, there is a lag time, given the

22 way the D.C. Legislature functions with
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1 congressional review period.

2             MEMBER JONES:  So your argument

3 would be that up to May 1st date, noted on the

4 document that you just reviewed, that the

5 ten-day requirement would be in effect up

6 until that point, that's the base?

7             MR. BIANCO:  That is the --

8             MEMBER JONES:  That's your

9 argument at this point?

10             MR. BIANCO:  That's my argument

11 based on the document based on the document

12 that was just handed to me.

13             MEMBER JONES:  Fair enough.  I

14 just wanted to make sure I was clear.

15             MR. BIANCO:  Absolutely.

16             MEMBER JONES:  Thank you.

17             MR. BIANCO:  Yes, sir.

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Ms. Miller?

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

20             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I was just

21 reminded that the change to the section was

22 enacted in January of 2013, as part of
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1 emergency legislation.

2             But that speaks to your comment on

3 the lag.  And I'm just putting that out there,

4 which I think Mr. James mentioned earlier,

5 that it went into effect in January 2013.

6             MR. JAMES:  It was actually

7 approved by the Counsel in December 2012, as

8 an emergency, and through the congressional

9 review, at some point, I think in the --

10             (Crosstalk)

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  But it went into

12 effect in January, that's all we'll need to

13 know.

14             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Thank you.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And the

16 application was filed when, after?

17             MR. JAMES:  I know that the letter

18 was sent out by staff for the restaurant

19 renewals in mid-February, and they had to get

20 their renewals in by April 1st, I don't have

21 the placard in front of me.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I mean, when
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1 was the protest filed?

2             (Off the record comments)

3             MR. JAMES:  (No audible response.)

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

5             MR. JAMES:  Sorry.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

7             MR. JAMES:  I thought we were

8 beyond -- I might have that information with

9 me, considering all of the information that I

10 have relayed to the Board, with regard to our

11 protest.  Let me see here.

12             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Maybe Mr. --

13             MR. BIANCO:  It was some time

14 after April the 18th.  That's when the meeting

15 was held where they voted to protest.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, so that

17 was after the effective date of the Act, is

18 what I was, or the statute, is that correct?

19             MR. JAMES:  Our protest letter was

20 April 29th, 2013.

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.  Okay.

22             MR. JAMES:  Our meeting was April
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1 18th, 2013.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So

3 January of 2013 the seven-day requirement was

4 in effect and, yes, and the protest was filed

5 in April, the 29th, April 29, 2013, okay.

6             Any other questions, comments,

7 before the Board rules on the motion to

8 dismiss?  Okay, then I would move to deny the

9 motion to dismiss.  Do I have a second?

10             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Second.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  On

12 grounds that the KCA provided seven days

13 notice of the meeting, and that's what's

14 required under 25-6013(b), as of January, and

15 this protest was filed in April.  Any other

16 comments?  Okay, all those in favor then of

17 denying the motion to dismiss, say aye.

18             (Chorus of ayes)

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All those

20 opposed?  All those abstaining?  Okay, the

21 motion passed as 5-0-0.  Okay, any other

22 preliminary matters?  Questions?  How many,
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1 can you all just give us an idea of how many

2 witnesses you may have?

3             MR. BIANCO:  Applicant only has

4 one.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

6             MR. JAMES:  And the KCA would, I

7 would like to make a statement, on behalf of

8 the KCA.  The witness that we had, had to

9 cancel, due to the change of date from the

10 original hearing date that was set.  She was

11 available then, but not available now.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, so it's

13 just you, okay.  All right, then we can start

14 with our investigator.  Okay, before I do

15 that, let me backtrack.  You can have a seat

16 and then I'll get to you.  Does the Applicant

17 have an opening statement?

18             MR. BIANCO:  (No response.)

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Not required. 

20 No?

21             MR. BIANCO:  We'll reserve for

22 presentation of our case in chief.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay. 

2 And does the KCA --

3             MR. JAMES:  Opening statement is

4 it?

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes, do you

6 have any opening statement?

7             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  You can

9 reserve it, as well.  Okay.

10             MR. JAMES:  I think I will just

11 make a brief opening statement.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

13             MR. JAMES:  So KCA became

14 concerned about this license renewal when we

15 observed that there was no sidewalk caf‚

16 entertainment endorsement on the renewal

17 placard.  And we were well aware that such a

18 sidewalk caf‚ is operated with the

19 establishment.

20             So that caused me to do some

21 research and look into the various permissions

22 and the situation with the Settlement
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1 Agreement.

2             And because the restaurant, Bossa,

3 had previously, at that location, an operation

4 called, Bossa, and under a different

5 corporation, had a license revoked by this

6 Board for lack of food sales, subsequently

7 purchased a different CR License, and is

8 operating under that now, that has an old

9 settlement agreement, joint agreement with ANC

10 1 --

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James, I

12 just want --

13             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  First of all,

15 you're not under oath, so none of this --

16             MR. JAMES:  Oh, okay.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- is

18 evidence.

19             MR. JAMES:  Well I thought you --

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  An opening

21 statement is just going to be what you intend

22 to show in your, what you think that just the
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1 facts are going to show.  And so it's all --

2             MR. JAMES:  I was trying to put it

3 in some sort of context.  Okay, the KCA will

4 attempt to show that this restaurant, through

5 its operation and lack of proper permitting,

6 and lack of clarity in its permissions, is a

7 cause of disturbance of peace, order and quiet

8 in the neighborhood.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay,

10 thank you.  Okay.  Mr. Apraku.

11             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And I've just

13 got to say, you're not even going to come near

14 this, but in a protest each side has no more

15 than an hour-and-a-half.  But I don't think

16 you're going to come anywhere near that.

17             MR. APRAKU:  I hope not.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  I hope

19 not.

20             (Off the record comments)

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, Mr.

22 Apraku, do you swear to tell the truth, the
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1 whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

2             MR. APRAKU:  I do.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

4 you.  So now, we all have a copy, I believe,

5 that everyone should have a copy of the

6 protest report that you wrote.

7             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, ma'am.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And you're

9 welcome to just highlight, if you like, areas

10 that you think the Board should be concerned

11 with, or look at, or you know, with respect to

12 this renewal application.

13             MR. APRAKU:  Absolutely.

14             (Off the record comments)

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

16             MR. APRAKU:  I'm Investigator Kofi

17 Apraku.  Last name is spelled A-P-R-A-K-U.  I

18 was assigned to protest investigation for

19 Tropicalia Project, LLC, Incorporated, trading

20 as Bossa Brazilian Bistro.

21             The renewal for Bossa Brazilian

22 Bistro is being protested by the Kalorama



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 25

1 Citizens' Association, represented by Mr.

2 Denis James.

3             On Friday, June 28, 2013, I

4 contacted Mr. James, who represents Kalorama

5 Citizens' Association.  Mr. James stated the

6 following concerns with Bossa Brazilian

7 Bistro.

8             Mr. James stated that following

9 concerns with Bossa Brazilian Bistro.  Mr.

10 James stated that Bossa Brazilian Bistro

11 causes unnecessary noise in the neighborhood

12 due to its loud, live music.

13             Mr. James stated that the

14 establishment opens its front doors and allows

15 music to blare needlessly into the street. 

16 Mr. James stated that the sidewalk caf‚

17 operates over his occupancy.

18             And then he also stated that he

19 had tried to engage the owners in mediation,

20 to make changes to the current Settlement

21 Agreement, but had not been met with any

22 cooperation.
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1             On Monday, July 8, 2013, I

2 interviewed Mr. Richard Bianco, the attorney

3 for Bossa Brazilian Bistro.  Mr. Bianco stated

4 that the establishment had worked with the

5 community to address any concerns regarding

6 noise.

7             Mr. Bianco also stated that

8 neither him, nor his client, were aware of any

9 noise complaints made by neighbors of the

10 establishment.

11             Mr. Bianco stated that the

12 establishment worked well with the community

13 and that the ANC had decided not to protest

14 the establishment because of how well the

15 establishment worked within the neighborhood.

16             Mr. Bianco stated that the

17 establishment already adheres to a settlement

18 agreement, so Mr. James' desire to create a

19 new settlement agreement is unwarranted.

20             On Thursday, July 8, 2013, I

21 visited Bossa Brazilian Bistro and spoke with

22 the owner, Mr. Wagner Depinho.  Mr. Depinho
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1 stated that he has worked well with the ABC

2 and the community, so there's no reason for

3 KCA to protest his establishment.

4             He stated that the establishment

5 plays relaxation music and is not very loud. 

6 He stated that he has also, and he also showed

7 me this, that he has signed proof the

8 establishment to prevent music from leaving

9 the establishment.

10             Bossa Brazilian Bistro is located

11 in a C2B Zone.  There are approximately 71

12 licensed agency establishments operating

13 within 1,200 feet of S&J Liquors.

14             S&J Liquors is located in a red

15 brick two-story building, with glass windows,

16 and doors at the entrance of the

17 establishment.  The dumpsters to their

18 establishment are located in the back of the

19 establishment towards the alley.

20             In regards to monitoring the

21 establishment, ABRA investigators monitored

22 Bossa Brazilian Bistro 13 separate occasions. 
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1 During the course of those monitorings,

2 investigators looked to see if there was

3 excessive noise, trash, you know, unruly

4 patrons, any of that.

5             In the 13 times the investigators

6 monitored the establishment, on no occasion

7 did investigators observe any loitering,

8 criminal activity, or excessive trash around

9 S&J Liquors.  ABRA investigators also did not

10 observe any excessive noise emanating from the

11 establishment.

12             I also monitored the alley behind

13 the establishment to see how much noise

14 travels, and it was difficult for me to

15 determine how much noise was actually coming

16 from Bossa Brazilian Bistro into the

17 neighborhood.  That's, yes, that's what I

18 have.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

20 you.  Was it difficult to determine the noise

21 from this establishment, because other

22 establishments had noise coming from them?
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1             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Do you

3 know how long this establishment has been

4 operating?

5             MR. APRAKU:  I'm not sure.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

7             MR. APRAKU:  I'm not entirely

8 sure.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Are you aware

10 of any noise complaints that have been made

11 against --

12             MR. APRAKU:  At the time of the

13 completion of this report, no, there weren't

14 any noise complaints that were listed.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, or

16 loitering, or littering?

17             MR. APRAKU:  No.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Any

19 complaints?

20             MR. APRAKU:  I think maybe they

21 had something for posting signs.  I'm not

22 entirely sure, so I don't want to put that in
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1 the record.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

3             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  I have a copy

4 of their history.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So as far as

6 you know, is there any indication that the

7 operation of this establishment has been

8 disturbing the peace, quiet, order of the

9 community?

10             MR. APRAKU:  Based on the

11 investigation that I conducted, I'm not able

12 to say that I experienced, for those 13 times

13 I had monitored the establishment, for it to

14 be creating any peace, order and quiet issue.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Other

16 Board Members, yes?

17             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

19             (Off the record comments)

20             MEMBER BROOKS:  Thank you, Madam

21 Chair.  Did you have an occasion to visit the

22 establishment either on a Friday, or a
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1 Saturday night, or early morning, say, after

2 1:00 a.m., to observe and listen for noise?

3             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  I tried to do

4 this, I believe, on more than one occasion. 

5 Again, I did visit it during those times.  I

6 actually have records, having visited on the

7 Friday, July 5th, at 2:30 a.m., and leaving

8 there at 2:45 a.m.

9             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  And did you

10 observe any live entertainment, or any

11 entertainment at all?

12             MR. APRAKU:  I did observe that

13 there was music coming from inside the

14 establishment.  At that time, they did not

15 have live music, but they did have some music

16 coming from the establishment.

17             MEMBER BROOKS:  And what type of

18 music, if you recall?

19             MR. APRAKU:  I would recall it as

20 more jazz, jazzy, more jazzy-type music, and

21 instrumental.

22             MEMBER BROOKS:  And was that
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1 coming from a DJ, or just background music

2 from speakers?

3             MR. APRAKU:  I did not enter the

4 premises, I was outside.  I was outside the

5 premises.  I did not see a DJ, from where I

6 was standing, but it almost appeared as though

7 it could have been from amplified speakers.

8             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  And did you

9 hear the music on the outside, as you were

10 standing outside?

11             MR. APRAKU:  Towards the front of

12 the establishment, yes.

13             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay, was it loud,

14 was it --

15             MR. APRAKU:  It blended in with

16 the rest, because I mean it's right, the

17 establishment itself is right next to Madam's

18 Organ, which also has an entertainment

19 license, so it kind of blended in --

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

21             MR. APRAKU:  -- with the music

22 from that establishment.
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1             MR. APRAKU:  So I mean it was loud

2 enough, for me standing in front of the

3 establishment, to hear --

4             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.

5             MR. APRAKU:  -- their music, and

6 also hear the music from the next door

7 establishment.

8             MEMBER BROOKS:  And were the

9 windows closed, and doors closed, at the time?

10             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  At that time,

11 yes, the doors and windows were closed.

12             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  Thank you,

13 Madam Chair.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay. 

15 Others?  Mr. Alberti?

16             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Yes.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Investigator

19 Apraku.

20             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Thank you for

22 your report.
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1             MR. APRAKU:  Thank you.

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Real quickly. 

3 Did you examine the license for this

4 establishment --

5             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

6             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- in your

7 investigation?

8             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.  Am I

10 correct that they are not licensed for a

11 summer garden, or sidewalk caf‚?

12             MR. APRAKU:  They do have a

13 sidewalk caf‚ on their license.

14             MEMBER ALBERTI:  They do, okay. 

15 Then I must have missed that.  I'm looking. 

16 And I could have be mistaken too, what I'm

17 looking at.  Okay, so they do.

18             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

19             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Do you know what

20 the hours are, and what the capacity is?

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  The sidewalk

22 caf‚ hours are from Sunday to Monday, I'm



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 35

1 sorry, from Sunday to, oh, from Sunday through

2 Saturday from 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m.

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  And would you

4 know what the capacity is?

5             MR. APRAKU:  I don't have that

6 information in front of me.

7             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay, that's

8 fine.  Thank you, very much.

9             MR. APRAKU:  Thank you.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Any other

11 Board questions?  Mr. Jones.

12             MEMBER JONES:  Thank you, Madam

13 Chair.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  Just to be clear, I

16 think he answered this, but I just want to

17 make sure I'm following in its entirety.  You

18 could hear the sound of music emanating from

19 the establishment, is that a correct

20 statement?

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

22             MEMBER JONES:  How far were you
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1 away from the establishment when you were able

2 to hear it?

3             MR. APRAKU:  I was --

4             MEMBER JONES:  Distinctly.

5             MR. APRAKU:  I was right at the

6 sidewalk almost into the street.

7             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So did you

8 make any efforts to extend that range from

9 that point to see how far away you could be

10 when you were hearing, clearly hearing music

11 from that establishment?

12             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, because normally

13 when I'm doing the monitoring, I park within,

14 there's a shoulder, there's a yellow shoulder

15 in which I park the car.

16             And while I was standing there, I

17 could not hear the music.  So that caused me

18 to move forward to the front of the

19 establishment, to see if I could hear it, at

20 what point I could hear it.

21             MEMBER JONES:  You could?

22             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  So if I understood

2 correctly, so you got out of the car and you

3 couldn't hear it.

4             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

5             MEMBER JONES:  You walked closer.

6             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

7             MEMBER JONES:  And you got to a

8 point where you could hear it.

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

10             MEMBER JONES:  Did you then

11 proceed -- now that you've identified this, as

12 music coming from this establishment, it has

13 a, I'll call it a signature.

14             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  Were you able to

16 then take it from that point, and then step

17 away, create more distance from your current

18 location in front of the establishment,

19 furthering the distance, so that you got to a

20 point where you couldn't hear it anymore?

21             MR. APRAKU:  Well, from where I'm

22 standing, for me to move forward, would be for
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1 me to go into the establishment.  So I would

2 have to move backwards --

3             MEMBER JONES:  Right.

4             MR. APRAKU:  -- back towards the

5 car, at which point where I was already at the

6 car and could not hear it, the music.

7             MEMBER JONES:  I guess what I'm

8 trying to draw the distinction is between, you

9 couldn't make out the music as coming from --

10             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

11             MEMBER JONES:  -- the licensed

12 establishment, when you were at the car.

13             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

14             MEMBER JONES:  So then you moved

15 closer to the establishment.

16             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

17             MEMBER JONES:  Once you got close

18 to the establishment, you could clearly

19 identify that this music was coming from this

20 establishment, right?

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

22             MEMBER JONES:  So you



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 39

1 characterized it as kind of a jazzy,

2 mellow-type of music.  I'm paraphrasing a

3 little bit.  So now that you've identified,

4 this type of music is coming from this

5 establishment, did you walk further away from

6 the establishment, to see how far you could go

7 and still make out that particular music?  If

8 you know what I'm trying --

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, I understand

10 what you're saying.

11             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

12             MR. APRAKU:  I don't recall.  I

13 don't necessarily, I don't think I moved,

14 because then I could have moved up the street

15 to see if I could hear it.

16             MEMBER JONES:  Yes.

17             MR. APRAKU:  And I don't recall

18 doing that.

19             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, that's fair. 

20 I just wanted to make sure I understood.

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

22             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.
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1             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

2             MEMBER JONES:  All right, so you

3 were able to make out, when you were directly

4 in front of the establishment, was there other

5 music coming from other establishments, i.e.

6 Madam's Organ, or what have you, when you were

7 standing directly in front of the licensed

8 establishment?

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

10             MEMBER JONES:  It was, okay.

11             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

12             MEMBER JONES:  Was the music

13 emanating from this licensed establishment any

14 louder than what, what was the relative level

15 of the music coming from this location, was it

16 lower, higher, about the same?

17             MR. APRAKU:  About the same. 

18 About the same.

19             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

20             MR. APRAKU:  Madam's Organ, and I

21 mean there's a little bit of a difference, I

22 guess, in the genera of music that's played
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1 next door, as opposed to Bossa, so it's about

2 the same, but their music, I think Madam's

3 Organ, and maybe, I think, Federal, or some of

4 the other ones a little bit up the street, is

5 a little bit louder.

6             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

7             MR. APRAKU:  So yes.

8             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Would you be

9 comfortable in stating that the noise coming

10 from the licensed establishment contributed to

11 the noise, the general noise in the

12 neighborhood?

13             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

14             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, you would be

15 comfortable in making that statement?

16             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

17             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Fair enough. 

18 Thank you.

19             MR. APRAKU:  Thank you.

20             MEMBER JONES:  Thank you, Madam

21 Chair.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I just want
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1 to follow-up on that line of questioning.  So

2 the noise from this establishment was with the

3 doors closed, were the doors closed?

4             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  It was with the

5 doors closed.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And what time

7 was it?

8             MR. APRAKU:  This was, I believe,

9 2:30 a.m. in the morning.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  2:30 a.m. in

11 the morning, okay.

12             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And when you

14 said that the noise contributed to the noise

15 of the other establishments, so that was

16 Madam's Organ, and do you know what other

17 ones?

18             MR. APRAKU:  Oh, I mean across the

19 street there's Ghana Caf‚, which has a live

20 band almost every day of the week, a large

21 number of the days of the week.  There's Reef,

22 across the street.  I mean, and those play
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1 very loud music.

2             So I mean, there's just a lot of

3 establishments within that corridor, so it's

4 very hard to just point out which ones who are

5 major contributors.

6             But those are, I could say Ghana

7 Caf‚, Madam's Organ, I mean, obviously,

8 Bossa's right there, they all play a part in,

9 you know.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  And so

11 would you say that this music blended in with

12 the others, or would you say that it actually

13 increased the noise level, when you say

14 contributed, if you can distinguish that, I

15 don't know?

16             MR. APRAKU:  It's kind of, it's a

17 little bit hard to distinguish, but I would

18 say just blended in.  I mean, unless you were

19 up close on it, you could distinguish the

20 music that was coming from each establishment. 

21 But being a little bit far away from it, it

22 just kind of all blends --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.

2             MR. APRAKU:  -- as loud music.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

4 you.  Any other Board questions?

5             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes, Mr.

7 Brooks.

8             MEMBER BROOKS:  I just, you know,

9 I want to correct the investigator.  I think,

10 across the street is Bukom.

11             MR. APRAKU:  Bukom, I'm sorry.

12             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes, it's not

13 Ghana Caf‚.

14             MR. APRAKU:  I didn't mean Ghana

15 Caf‚, I meant Bukom.

16             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.

17             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

18             MEMBER BROOKS:  All right.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you. 

20 Mr. Jones.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Thank you, Madam

22 Chair.  During your review of your report, did
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1 you make a reference to the fact that you had

2 a conversation of the owner of the licensed

3 establishment?

4             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, I did.

5             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Did the

6 owners, if I remember correctly, did you speak

7 to any feedback he provided you regarding

8 soundproofing of his establishment?

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

10             MEMBER JONES:  And do I recall

11 correctly, that you indicated he pointed some

12 of the soundproofing to you?

13             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

14             MEMBER JONES:  Can you describe to

15 me what he pointed out?

16             MR. APRAKU:  When you enter Bossa,

17 when you enter through the front door, there's

18 a semi-stage, it's a little bit of a raised

19 stage, right around the window area.

20             He showed, and again, I'm not a

21 sound engineer, but from what he showed me,

22 there was sort of, I forget the exact term,
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1 but there was some sort of fixture above the

2 stage that is supposed to prevent the noise

3 from leaving the establishment.

4             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

5             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

6             MEMBER JONES:  So he provided you

7 feedback and showed you --

8             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

9             MEMBER JONES:  -- a sound

10 absorbing, or canceling-type of device --

11             MR. APRAKU:  Exactly.

12             MEMBER JONES:  -- or fixture that

13 was mounted slightly above the stage area?

14             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

16             (Off the record comments)

17             MEMBER JONES:  Did he provide

18 anything else?

19             MR. APRAKU:  No.

20             MEMBER JONES:  Did he show you

21 anything else?

22             MR. APRAKU:  That was it.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  So that was the --

2             MR. APRAKU:  That was it.

3             MEMBER JONES:  That was the extent

4 of the soundproofing measures that he chose to

5 share with you, during your visit?

6             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

7             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Thank you. 

8 Thank you, Madam Chair.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, one

10 more thing, just to clarify.  So the sound

11 that you heard outside, the music, that

12 soundproofing was in effect at the time, as

13 far you know?

14             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I mean, it

16 was in the building?

17             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay. 

19 Anything else?  All right, does the Applicant

20 have cross?

21             MR. BIANCO:  Just a couple of

22 questions.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

2             MR. BIANCO:  I got lost somewhere

3 in the discussion that we were having about

4 how close you had to be to the building to

5 distinguish the sound coming from it.  It was

6 my understanding, after all of that, that you

7 were essentially right next to the entrance?

8             MR. APRAKU:  Not directly in, yes,

9 about, right around there, right around the

10 entrance.

11             MR. BIANCO:  If you reached your

12 hand out, would you have been able to touch

13 the building, at that point?

14             MR. APRAKU:  No, it was a little

15 bit further back.

16             MR. BIANCO:  So ten feet?

17             MR. APRAKU:  Roughly.

18             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.

19             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

20             MR. BIANCO:  As an investigator,

21 you're familiar with the 18th Street, between

22 say, Florida and Columbia Avenue?
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1             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

2             MR. BIANCO:  Is it fair to

3 describe that as an entertainment district?

4             MR. APRAKU:  It has a lot of

5 establishments.  It has a lot of ABC

6 establishments, yes, I would --

7             MR. BIANCO:  And a lot of those

8 establishments have music, live or recorded?

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

10             MR. BIANCO:  And a lot of those

11 establishments that have music, live or

12 recorded, have that sound emanating from those

13 premises?

14             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

15             MR. BIANCO:  And am I correct, in

16 reviewing your testimony, that Bossa is no

17 louder than any of those other establishments?

18             MR. APRAKU:  From the times that I

19 observed it, I cannot make a determination

20 that they were louder than the other

21 establishments that were around it.

22             MR. BIANCO:  And you were able to
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1 make a determination that they're making less

2 noise emanating from their premises than some

3 of their immediate neighbors, which is Madam's

4 Organ, and a couple of the others that you

5 mentioned?

6             MR. APRAKU:  I would not

7 necessarily go as far to say that they were

8 making less, I would say that the music that

9 was coming out of Bossa blended in with the

10 music that was coming in from other

11 establishments, thereby not increasing it or

12 decreasing it.  But, I mean, pretty much was

13 at the same level.

14             MR. BIANCO:  So based on the

15 number of establishments in immediate

16 proximity to Bossa, it's impossible to

17 distinguish?

18             MR. APRAKU:  It would be difficult

19 to distinguish.

20             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  In the course

21 of your investigation, did you have occasion

22 to review the investigative history of Bossa?
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1             MR. APRAKU:  I did.

2             MR. BIANCO:  And it's true, is it

3 not, that in this past licensing year, they

4 haven't been written for any violations?

5             MR. APRAKU:  I don't recall, off

6 the top of my head.

7             MR. BIANCO:  Have you had occasion

8 to write them for any violations for this

9 licensing year?

10             MR. APRAKU:  I have not written

11 them for any violation.

12             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Have you

13 received any complaints about their operation?

14             MR. APRAKU:  I, personally, have

15 not received any complaints.

16             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And are you

17 aware from any other investigators of any

18 other complaints?

19             MR. APRAKU:  I mean, investigators

20 don't necessarily share their cases with other

21 investigators, so I mean, that's, I mean, they

22 haven't shared it with me.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  I understand.  And

2 most importantly, I believe, with your

3 testimony, please correct me if I'm wrong, but

4 you can't say that Bossa adversely impacts the

5 peace, order and quiet in the neighborhood,

6 correct?

7             MR. APRAKU:  I can't make, based

8 on my investigation of the 13 times that I

9 monitored the establishment, I did not observe

10 anything that adversely impacted the peace,

11 order and quiet of the neighborhood.

12             MR. BIANCO:  Great.  Thank you,

13 very much.

14             MR. APRAKU:  Thank you.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you. 

16 Mr. James.

17             MR. JAMES:  Thank you. 

18 Investigator Apraku.

19             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

20             MR. JAMES:  I noted that you

21 visited the establishment, your verbal

22 testimony said 13 times.  The copy of the
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1 Investigative Report that was handed to me, is

2 missing Page 9, so I don't see the --

3             MR. APRAKU:  Oh.

4             MR. JAMES:  -- the three that

5 were, the three visits to the establishment

6 took place then.  Member Brooks just asked you

7 a question about one of them that was Friday,

8 July 5th --

9             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Mr. Bianco,

10 you're rubbing against the microphone.

11             (Off the record comments)

12             MR. BIANCO:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Thank

13 you.

14             MR. JAMES:  Board Member Brooks

15 mentioned one that was Friday, July 5th, at

16 2:45 a.m., that one, so I know that there was

17 at least one visit, and what I would call

18 late, well, what I would suggest are late

19 night hours, when the establishment would be

20 operating.

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

22             MR. JAMES:  Were there other
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1 occasions that you visited the establishment?

2             MR. APRAKU:  The only occasions

3 that are available are the occasions listed on

4 the report.

5             MR. JAMES:  Right.  Well, I'm

6 missing looks like two of them.

7             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

8             MR. JAMES:  Numbers 11, 12, or 13. 

9 I see Number 1, you visited.  Well, I said

10 this, actually, there's a problem with that. 

11 You arrived at 2:20 p.m., but it states, this

12 is Number 1, that you left at 2:30 a.m., is

13 that perhaps a typo?

14             MR. APRAKU:  It's a typo.

15             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  So among the

16 visits numbered one through ten, on Pages 7

17 and 8, were there any that restaurant was

18 actually operating?

19             MR. APRAKU:  Well, the 2:45 a.m.,

20 it was operating.

21             MR. JAMES:  Very good.  But on

22 these other times, for instance, when you
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1 visited, visits numbered one through ten, at

2 2:20 p.m., 1:15 p.m., 4:35 p.m., et cetera,

3 was the establishment even open for business?

4             MR. APRAKU:  It was not.

5             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  And your

6 testimony is that, at least, on the one

7 occasion, Friday, July 5th, 2:45 a.m., that

8 was the incident of music discernible from --

9             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

10             MR. JAMES:  -- some distance.  I

11 believe, you had stated ten feet away --

12             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

13             MR. JAMES:  -- at least, ten feet

14 away from the establishment?

15             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

16             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  Okay.  Did

17 you have occasion to get information from the

18 Metropolitan Police Department, as to any

19 incidents, or calls for a service to the

20 establishment?

21             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, hold on real

22 quick.
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1             MR. JAMES:  I see that there is a

2 page in the report of some incident of a call

3 for service.

4             MR. APRAKU:  Is that in this

5 Exhibit Number 20?

6             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Madam Chair, is

7 it possible to bring exhibits through the

8 investigator?

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  These are

10 exhibits are in the record.  The protest

11 report is in the record.

12             MR. JAMES:  But --

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Your --

14             MR. JAMES:  Pardon me.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  The protest

16 report is in the record.

17             MR. JAMES:  Right, but --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All these

19 exhibits, you have something else?

20             MR. JAMES:  Yes, we have similar

21 information that we were lacking a second

22 witness who that we wish to enter into the
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1 record.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Well let me

3 just say this, before we get to that question,

4 if we have to, you can be a witness, so if

5 you're capable of getting them into the record

6 in your case that --

7             MR. JAMES:  That's fine.  If I

8 would be --

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- that's

10 preferable.

11             MR. JAMES:  -- allowed to do that,

12 it's all official District Government --

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So they're

14 official District --

15             MR. JAMES:  Government pieces of

16 information, you know, either from the

17 Metropolitan Police Department, or ABRA files.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, that's

19 not going to be a problem.

20             MR. JAMES:  Okay, so I won't go

21 there, at this time.  During your observations

22 of the establishment, when they were open for
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1 business, and particularly later in the

2 evening, did you ever notice the window, their

3 casement-type window in front, open?

4             MR. APRAKU:  No.

5             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  So and in the

6 later evenings, when you did visit, did you

7 note that there were patrons on the sidewalk

8 caf‚?

9             MR. APRAKU:  I believe, yes, once. 

10 Let me make sure.  I'm not sure.  I'm not

11 sure.  I don't want to guess.

12             MR. JAMES:  So just to be clear,

13 between my previous question about whether the

14 window was open, and then there's patrons on

15 the sidewalk caf‚ late at night, you never

16 noticed the window being left open so the

17 patrons can hear the music?

18             MR. APRAKU:  No, and I believe

19 that was something that I even addressed with

20 the owner in regards to, you know, it being a

21 complaint as to the window being open, at

22 which point he said he'd never opened it
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1 before.  So that's, for the times that I had

2 been there, I didn't observe that there was a

3 window open.

4             MR. JAMES:  So there was a sort of

5 a comparison of the sound levels --

6             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

7             MR. JAMES:  -- from various

8 establishments that were mentioned by Mr.

9 Bianco and Members of the Board, was the sound

10 emanating from Bossa, louder than that from La

11 Forchetta, for instance, or --

12             MR. APRAKU:  From my

13 understanding, Meskerem --

14             MR. JAMES:  -- from Meskerem, from

15 Smoke and Barrel?

16             MR. APRAKU:  From my

17 understanding, Meskerem is across the street

18 from it, correct?

19             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

20             MR. APRAKU:  Yes, Meskerem. 

21 Again, I, that whole corridor area is loud. 

22 For me to make a distinct, you know, a
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1 comparison and distinguish and say this one

2 was louder than the other, I would have to go

3 to each establishment, stand in front of each

4 establishment, and make a mental determination

5 of how loud each establishment is --

6             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

7             MR. APRAKU:  -- which I did not

8 do.

9             MR. JAMES:  So is it a fair

10 statement to say that numerous establishments

11 contribute to the general noise on the street?

12             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

13             MR. JAMES:  And are you aware that

14 whether or not there are residents, who live

15 above some of the restaurants, or above their

16 businesses there?

17             MR. APRAKU:  I only did my

18 investigation on Bossa, I didn't --

19             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

20             MR. APRAKU:  -- I didn't go

21 off-site and speak to other establishments to

22 see what residents were there.
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1             MR. JAMES:  And to the best of

2 your knowledge --

3             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

4             MR. JAMES:  -- and based upon your

5 report, where you mention that it's a C2B Zone

6 --

7             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.

8             MR. JAMES:  -- does that mean that

9 it's a mixed use zone?

10             MR. APRAKU:  Yes.  Yes.

11             MR. JAMES:  And are you aware of

12 the zoning requirements about that, that say,

13 you know, mixed use zone has so much space

14 allowed for residences, and so much allowed

15 for a business?

16             MR. APRAKU:  I'm familiar, I'm

17 vaguely familiar with it, but I'm not --

18             MR. JAMES:  All right.

19             MR. APRAKU:  -- I'm not an expert

20 at the --

21             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.

22             MR. APRAKU:  -- zoning



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 62

1 regulations.

2             MR. JAMES:  That's fine.  And as

3 to whether there's such a thing as an

4 entertainment district within a C2B Zone and

5 district zoning, are you aware of anything

6 like that?

7             MR. APRAKU:  No, I'm not aware of

8 anything like that.

9             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  Yes, as

10 the to the sidewalk caf‚ license, do you have

11 detailed information about when that might

12 have been issued?

13             MR. APRAKU:  I do not have

14 detailed information about it.  The sidewalk

15 caf‚ license, the sidewalk caf‚ has

16 endorsements that's presented on the license. 

17 They do have that endorsement on their

18 license.

19             MR. JAMES:  On the license that

20 was issued recently?

21             MR. APRAKU:  At the time of my

22 investigation, they did have a sidewalk caf‚
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1 on their license.

2             MR. JAMES:  Okay, because I didn't

3 see a copy of anything like that in your

4 Investigative Report.

5             MR. APRAKU:  I did not put a copy

6 of the ABC License inside the Investigative

7 Report.

8             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  That's all I

9 have.  Thank you.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

11 you, very much.

12             MR. APRAKU:  Thank you.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Bianco?

14             MR. BIANCO:  Can we call Wagner

15 Depinho, as a witness?

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

17             MR. BIANCO:  Would you prefer him

18 to testify from the stand.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

20             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.

21             MR. DEPINHO:  Just go over there?

22             MR. BIANCO:  Yes.
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Hi.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Hi.

3             MR. DEPINHO:  I'm Wagner Depinho.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do you swear

5 to tell the truth, the whole truth, nothing

6 but the truth?

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

9 you.

10             MR. BIANCO:  Wagner, I'm going to

11 ask you a couple questions, okay?

12             MALE PARTICIPANT:  Can you

13 identify yourself?

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Can he

15 identify himself, for the record, again,

16 before you start?

17             MR. BIANCO:  Yes.  Can you please

18 state your name and spell your last name for

19 the record?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  I'm Wagner,

21 W-A-G-N-E-R, Depinho, D-E-P-I-N-H-O.

22             MR. BIANCO:  And Mr. Depinho,
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1 could you please tell the Board what your

2 relationship is to Bossa Brazilian Bistro.

3             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, Bossa is like,

4 you know, when I purchased it, like two years

5 ago, there was already a place in there.  And

6 we play very -- it's a bistro, restaurant.

7             And also we have live music,

8 entertainment, and they play from the West

9 Africa, like music from Mali, bossa nova,

10 including jazz.  We have on Sunday nights some

11 Irish folk, Irish music.

12             And my associate is from New York. 

13 And then we do, I don't think in any case,

14 that says my music's loud.  If you open the

15 door, of course, some music would go out, as

16 people come in and out.  But for the most

17 part, I think my music's very mellow,

18 comparing to the neighborhood that surrounds

19 me.

20             MR. BIANCO:  Wagner, in the time

21 that you've been operating Bossa, have you run

22 into any problems with the ABC Board, in terms
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1 of violations and in your operations?

2             MR. DEPINHO:  No, the only, just

3 citation I have in there, I didn't know at the

4 time, was for myself not being there, and my

5 manager, which was, then I got there two

6 minutes later after they signed without, and

7 I didn't know that fact.

8             MR. BIANCO:  And you since

9 addressed that issue, correct?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I mean, I spoke

11 to the lady.  I was there.  I went to the

12 store.  It's a small business.  We open from

13 6:00 a.m., you know, occasion, and that's a

14 small operation.  And I manage, I am the chef,

15 I cook.

16             And I was going to the store, back

17 there, and my manager the day, I wasn't there

18 the day, which is the, she's the manager for

19 the weekend, but she already received

20 management license.  That's about it, think I

21 can recall --

22             MR. BIANCO:  Wagner --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  -- thus far.

2             MR. BIANCO:  What type of music,

3 I'm sorry.  Do you have live music in your

4 establishment?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, that's why --

6             MR. BIANCO:  How many --

7             MR. DEPINHO:  -- predominantly

8 live music.

9             MR. BIANCO:  How many nights a

10 week do you have live music?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Every night but

12 Monday, I close on Mondays.

13             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Have you ever

14 --

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I'm sorry,

16 could you repeat that, every night but what?

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Mondays, like first

18 of week.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But Monday,

20 okay.

21             MR. DEPINHO:  I don't work on

22 Mondays.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  Are there ever times

2 when you have music playing in the

3 establishment that's not from a live band?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  I do my iPod in

5 between when the band stops, and my music

6 stops at 2 o'clock on the weekend.  If you go

7 there after 2:00 a.m., it happens between 2:00

8 a.m. and 2:10 a.m., there'll be no more live

9 music.

10             And then we play the iPod,

11 whatever, you know, the bar, and like 2:45

12 a.m., mostly, my client sales out.  And the

13 people that go to Bossa, they know what kind

14 of music they're looking for, and the kind of,

15 you don't get a lot of wild boys from the

16 streets.

17             MR. BIANCO:  Do you ever have a

18 there?

19             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, on occasion, we

20 like have a second floor, so private

21 functions, for weddings, or for requests.

22             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  There was --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Mainly on the bottom

2 floor.

3             MR. BIANCO:  There was testimony

4 about soundproofing that you did around your

5 stage area, can you please describe for the

6 Board --

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

8             MR. BIANCO:  -- the work that you

9 did?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  My partner is from

11 New York, he's a musician, he's a sound

12 engineer, I should say, had some panels that

13 goes in the ceiling.

14             And I had some cover that goes,

15 because it had a window glass.  When you play

16 music against the window glass and the sound

17 doesn't -- not, I mean, I don't understand

18 much about it.

19             But he knows better than I do,

20 which is to muffle, I think, the sound from

21 going through the window.  But he's not all,

22 he enjoys jazz, but for the purpose of a
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1 musician not to, to the acoustic.

2             So I have panels on the ceiling

3 and some panels on the wall surrounding the

4 small stage on the front and the windows.

5             MR. BIANCO:  And while music is

6 being played in your establishment, do you

7 ever have the windows opened?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Unless the musician

9 opens them, or left them open, but in my idea,

10 and my asked them not to open, because I'm

11 aware of the ANC and all of their agreements

12 and point that after 11:30 p.m. or so, it

13 should be closing everything else, but only if

14 they open the door, but never to be open.

15             MR. BIANCO:  And we heard a little

16 bit of testimony that there may be some

17 residential neighbors in proximity to your

18 establishment.  Have you ever received any

19 complaints from any of those folks, directly?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Not personally. 

21 Nobody approached me, since I've been in there

22 with Bossa.



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 71

1             MR. BIANCO:  Have the police ever

2 come to your establishment to tell you you're

3 making too much noise?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  No.  But I mean, I

5 have just across the street, the park in front

6 of Bossa, and I haven't had one police

7 officer.

8             And the only thing the police

9 contact me about, my alarm system contacts me

10 when I leave the alarm.  And it pass the time,

11 it calls the police, so they call, they calls

12 the police and they, one company calls me

13 telling that you send the police officer to

14 the premises.  That's the only time.

15             MR. BIANCO:  You're not seeking to

16 change anything in your operation, at this

17 point, are you?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  I'm pretty happy.  I

19 mean, I don't understand that they're, like I

20 said to you, that's one of the point, I have

21 you to, you just point to --

22             MR. BIANCO:  All right.
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  -- to help me with

2 this process.  First time doing this.  And I'm

3 pretty happy with what I have, as a

4 restaurant, as a bistro, with the

5 entertainment, and then the window.  Even

6 though, the neighborhood has been through the

7 change of problem, and it's a different

8 neighborhood, you know, like when I was in

9 college here many years ago.

10             I used to go down the caf‚ old

11 track back in the days, which was my dream,

12 and then when I was in college.  And since

13 then has changed a lot, so that's all I can

14 say.

15             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Thank you,

16 Wagner.  Mr. James might have some questions

17 for you.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes, no, no,

19 no, stay, stay, stay, we're not done.

20             MR. BIANCO:  I need you to stay

21 seated, Mr. James is going to ask you some

22 questions.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That was the

2 easy part.  Mr. James, do you?

3             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Oh, I definitely

4 have some questions.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

6             MR. JAMES:  Mr. Depinho, you

7 mentioned a partner?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I have a

9 partner.

10             MR. JAMES:  Who is that?  What is

11 your partner's name?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Say it again.

13             MR. JAMES:  What is your partner's

14 name?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Robert Coltun.  I

16 mean, he's an associate now, that guy.

17             MR. JAMES:  Because all the

18 documents -- well, let me make it a question. 

19 I specifically asked the ABRA records manager

20 the question as to whether there was anybody

21 else on the LLC, and the answer was that it

22 was --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  He's an --

2             MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Wagner, I'm

3 sorry.  I'm going to object, at this point. 

4 ABRA records, corporate documents available,

5 issues related to licensor, are not directly

6 related to peace, order and quiet in the

7 neighborhood.  This is not a show cause

8 hearing, it's not a licensor hearing, it's a

9 renewal hearing.

10             It's a protest on a renewal, where

11 it's been alleged that the operations of Bossa

12 adversely impact the peace, order and quiet. 

13 Corporate structure of the business that owns

14 the establishment is not an issue in this

15 hearing.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Mr.

17 James, what's the relevance, if any, to issues

18 here of peace, order and quiet?

19             MR. JAMES:  The question is, you

20 know, who's running the establishment, and who

21 are, you know, who's responsible for the

22 operation and how it is presented to the
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1 community.  And later I think I can show the

2 Board that it's a very careless operation and

3 it'd be good to know who is involved in

4 running it.  And --

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Well, you can

6 ask him that question, who runs it?

7             MR. JAMES:  But anyway, I sort of

8 got an answer anyway.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

10             MR. JAMES:  I appreciate that. 

11 You mention that you cook at the restaurant?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

13             MR. JAMES:  What time does the

14 restaurant open?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Six o'clock.

16             MR. JAMES:  Six, 6:00 p.m., and

17 you have the restaurant permission to stay

18 open until legal closing hours of 2:00 a.m.

19 Sunday through Thursday, and 3:30 a.m. on

20 Saturday, is that correct?

21             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.  According to

22 the license, yes.
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1             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  And generally,

2 what time do you finish cooking and leave the

3 establishment?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  It depends on the

5 business.  I mean, business, I mean, from a

6 restaurant perspective, depends how much

7 business you have.

8             As you notice, Adams Morgan has

9 big client business lately, who knows, due to

10 the construction.  And when I purchase on my

11 end, and I purchased at 2010, the end of 2010,

12 it took them two years to finish the

13 restructure of the sidewalk and the streets

14 itself.

15             And we opened.  And then I offered

16 some bar food at the bar, and the music

17 started till, what my license required, like

18 two hours before I close.

19             If you go there, I have like small

20 dishes.  But my dining room depends on that. 

21 On the weekend I do 11:30 p.m., 12:00 p.m.,

22 and I try not to blend in too much.
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1             We have the light music going in

2 the bar.  And if you go there, I mean, I'm

3 never seeing you going there for food, other

4 than going there and some point recording

5 outside Bossa when people opening the door. 

6 And I've seen you, perhaps, then you walk

7 away.

8             MR. JAMES:  I think you've

9 answered my question.  Thank you.  So is it

10 accurate to say that the kitchen stays open

11 two hours before closing?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

13             MR. JAMES:  And just as a general

14 rule, do you, as the operator, leave the

15 establishment in the hands of a manager, after

16 you've finished your cooking stint and --

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, I have

18 manager, like I said.  I mean, I have a

19 manager that have the ABC licenses, I mean I

20 have a --

21             MR. JAMES:  Do you have an ABC

22 licensed manager?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  I do.  I have two of

2 them.

3             MR. JAMES:  Good.  Are you, and of

4 course, you're the operator, so when you're

5 present that's not even required, but --

6             MR. DEPINHO:  I suppose not.

7             MR. JAMES:  So is it your

8 statement that when the live music is playing,

9 the window is not left open, for patrons on

10 the sidewalk to be able to hear?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, in the times

12 that I've been there, that's my notice to the

13 magician, that anyone that plays there,

14 including the bar managers, whatever's been in

15 there, that the doors should remain closed, I

16 mean, the windows.

17             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  Investigator

18 Apraku stated that you do a have a sidewalk

19 caf‚ license currently on --

20             MR. DEPINHO:  I think there is --

21             MR. JAMES:  I'm not there yet. 

22 I'm not to the question yet.
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

2             MR. JAMES:  Earlier this year, was

3 it the case that the sidewalk caf‚ permits

4 were not --

5             MR. BIANCO:  Wagner, wait.

6             MR. JAMES:  -- up to date.

7             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object

8 again.

9             MR. JAMES:  What?

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

11             MR. BIANCO:  The Board's file

12 speaks for itself.  It's not a licensor

13 hearing.  We're not dealing with show cause

14 issue, we're dealing with the issue of peace,

15 order and quiet in the neighborhood.  The

16 licenses are in the Board's file.  The Board

17 has an opportunity to review them and make

18 what determination she wants to make.  But

19 what Mr. James is supposed to be putting on

20 his evidence that this establishment adversely

21 impacts the peace, order and quiet to which

22 what licenses are in the file.  Now which
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1 person has an ABC manager, or what their

2 corporate structure is, has absolutely nothing

3 to do with it.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

5             MR. JAMES:  We would argue that it

6 has a great deal to do with it.  If the

7 establishment is operating an unlicensed

8 sidewalk caf‚, with patrons outside who are

9 listening to the music through the open

10 window, when there's not even a license to

11 serve alcoholic beverages on the sidewalk

12 caf‚, at least for part of the time, because

13 as the Board knows, if it looks at the protest

14 file it will see that there was no sidewalk

15 caf‚ endorsement for the 2013 renewal.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So if the

17 Board looks to the file, and the file will

18 show whether or not there was an endorsement,

19 at a certain date, why do you need to pursue

20 this line of questioning?

21             MR. JAMES:  If the Board, well,

22 because, in the past the permission's been for
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1 24 persons on the sidewalk caf‚.  So their

2 presence there and their desire to hear the

3 music through the open window leads to noise

4 disturbance in the neighborhood.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I'm not sure

6 what --

7             MR. JAMES:  You may disagree with

8 --

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No.

10             MR. JAMES:  -- what I'm saying,

11 but I think I have the right to --

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No, that's a

13 conclusion.

14             MR. JAMES:  -- deposit that as a

15 --

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I want to

17 know what, again, what kind of information

18 though you're trying to solicit from this

19 witness.  The Applicant Attorney said if

20 you're trying to solicit whether or not they

21 had a sidewalk caf‚ a certain time, that's in

22 our records.  That's the best evidence there
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1 is in our records, whether they were

2 authorized a certain date or not.

3             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And this is

5 about what are they doing, what have they been

6 doing that's caused an adverse impact on the

7 neighborhood?

8             MR. JAMES:  So I would hope that

9 the Board would be concerned that an operator

10 was operating a sidewalk caf‚ without

11 permission, to serve alcoholic beverages and

12 have them consumed on the sidewalk caf‚.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That's not,

14 I'm not arguing about that, I'm just arguing

15 with you about going down a road asking him

16 when he was operating, when he wasn't

17 operating, because that's not the subject. 

18 It's not going to do --

19             MR. JAMES:  So many things could

20 contribute the lack of peace, order, I mean,

21 to, you know, contribute to disturbance of the

22 peace, order and quiet.  If the Board
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1 disagrees with me, then that will be --

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I --

3             MR. JAMES:  -- that will be my

4 lack of ability to convince the Board of that.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Then tell me

6 what --

7             MR. JAMES:  But to simply ask a

8 question.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What is the

10 question?

11             MR. JAMES:  I asked a question.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I know, say

13 it again, though, since I've heard his

14 argument, which sounded like it was going to

15 the factual situation, which is in our

16 records, whether or not they had it, and

17 endorsement or not.  That's not your question? 

18 What is your question?  Do you have a --

19             MEMBER JONES:  This has been a lot

20 of time going back and forth on this.  Either

21 rule on it --

22             (Crosstalk)
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Well I need

2 to hear the question again.

3             MEMBER JONES:  Then just let him

4 ask the question and move on.

5             MR. JAMES:  I'll move on to a

6 different question.

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

8             MR. JAMES:  So, Mr. Depinho, would

9 you agree that a restaurant that doesn't meet

10 its food requirements, and sales more, you

11 know, alcohol beyond, sales alcohol to the

12 extent that it is lacking in its food

13 requirements, would that restaurant likely be

14 a disturbance to the neighborhood?

15             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object

16 to the questions, both compound and my

17 client's opinion about food sales impact on

18 peace, order and quiet is not relevant to the

19 proceedings.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I agree, I

21 don't think that's, his opinion about what's

22 a disturbance, is not evidence.
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1             (Off the record comments)

2             MR. JAMES:  Well, I'm not going to

3 ask any further questions then.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

5             (Off the record comments)

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Board

7 questions?

8             (Off the record comments)

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Brooks.

10             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes.  Thank you,

11 Madam Chair.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you.

13             MEMBER BROOKS:  Mr. Depinho, do

14 you have the copy of the exhibits in front of

15 you?  Specifically, Exhibit 12.  I would like

16 for him to take a look at it with me.

17             MR. BIANCO:  I only have the one

18 copy.  With your permission I can approach and

19 stay up there and --

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh, okay.

21             MEMBER BROOKS:  Sure.  Okay. 

22 Okay.
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1             (Off the record comments)

2             MR. BIANCO:  And just to be clear,

3 12 and --

4             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes, that's the

5 correct one, thank you.  Okay, Mr. Depinho,

6 you indicated that you had put in some

7 soundproofing?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

9             MEMBER BROOKS:  Now would the

10 soundproofing include this area?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  It actually sits

12 more in this area.

13             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.

14             MR. DEPINHO:  But I --

15             MEMBER BROOKS:  So explain, so

16 what we drew where you put soundproofing.

17             MR. DEPINHO:  When you look around

18 on top here, it sits at a bit of an angle, and

19 it has like some, something like a carpet, or

20 like a board, along this, on the sides.  But

21 also, my music, I mean, you have to see, this

22 is on a particular night, we have Irish music,
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1 it's like instrument, I mean, mostly acoustic,

2 it's not anything loud.

3             (Off the record comments)

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  You need to

5 speak into the microphone, so the court

6 reporter can get you.

7             MR. DEPINHO:  All right.  It sits

8 on the sides.  Because it's all glass window,

9 it sits on the sides, and it sits on top.  And

10 if you walk from here to this small area in

11 the restaurant, sits on the top also like

12 some, what do you call it, some panels

13 throughout.  And then on this stage here, top

14 being the ceiling, it has some board, like

15 soundproof thing that absorb the sound.

16             MEMBER BROOKS:  So some

17 soundproofing material?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

19             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  And you

20 said that your partner is an engineer?

21             MR. DEPINHO:  My associate, he

22 designed up something.
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1             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.

2             MR. DEPINHO:  He's a musician,

3 learned that somewhere.

4             MEMBER BROOKS:  Right.

5             MR. DEPINHO:  He planned them out.

6             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  I

7 understand there's another exhibit I need to

8 look at, but since I have this one, the

9 windows, are they soundproof windows, did you

10 say that, or maybe I misunderstood you?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  I might have

12 misunderstood that, I do not know if they are

13 soundproof.

14             MEMBER BROOKS:  Oh, okay.

15             MR. DEPINHO:  I do know that

16 beside, it's designed to sound, the sound is

17 never louder than anything, like if you walk

18 through the deck.  It's never loud in the

19 streets, in the corridor, streets, and

20 anything like that.

21             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.  And the

22 windows, do they open?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  No.

2             MEMBER BROOKS:  No?

3             MR. DEPINHO:  They open early

4 sometimes in the summertime, but no music

5 starts before 10:00 p.m., 10:30 p.m.

6             MEMBER BROOKS:  But you can open

7 them?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, I think the

9 agreement I had with the ANC is like 10:00

10 p.m. to 11:30 p.m.

11             MEMBER BROOKS:  So they're

12 operable?

13             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, you can open

14 them.

15             MEMBER BROOKS:  Yes, that was my

16 question.  Okay.  And how long ago have you

17 put in the insulation, and the soundproof?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  Some of them has

19 just, it's been there for at least for a while

20 now, like, prior to the other establishments

21 that play music.  But the two boards that you

22 have on the ceilings are more like
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1 two-and-a-half year ago, maybe.

2             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay, so was some

3 soundproofing there before you --

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, before I go --

5             (Crosstalk)

6             MEMBER BROOKS:  -- became the

7 owner?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

9             MEMBER BROOKS:  Oh, okay.

10             MR. DEPINHO:  It was on.

11             MEMBER BROOKS:  Any idea how much

12 money you spent for this, the soundproofing,

13 approximately?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  I don't, because

15 when I purchasing, that was already into the

16 package, but I would say like a panel, those

17 panels, you know, they're not very cheap.

18             If you haven't gotten the chance

19 to go to Bossa, and see a lot of them in the

20 ceiling, and the ones on the -- I couldn't

21 come up the numbers, a specific number.  But

22 they're not very cheap.  They're very quite
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1 expensive, very expensive.

2             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay, so you

3 really don't know how much you spent for that?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Not off the top of

5 my head.

6             MEMBER BROOKS:  Okay.

7             MR. DEPINHO:  But I can look it

8 up.

9             MEMBER BROOKS:  That's all right. 

10 Okay, thank you, Madam Chair.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Other Board

12 questions?

13             (Off the record comments)

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr.  Jones.

15             MEMBER JONES:  All right, thank

16 you, Madam Chair.  So I'm going to get to the

17 questions that I think, well, I'm going to go

18 in a direction, that I'm trying to get a

19 better understanding of the nature of your

20 operations and how that potentially could be

21 an impact on peace, order and quiet, in terms

22 of the noise, alleged noise emanating from
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1 your establishment.  So do you operate an

2 outdoor patio?

3             MR. DEPINHO:  It sits 15 people,

4 ten people outside.

5             MEMBER JONES:  Yes, so you --

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Depinho,

7 you need to, I know you want to talk to Mr.

8 Jones, but make sure you talk into the

9 microphone, as well.

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Okay, okay.  Sorry.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That's okay.

12             MEMBER JONES:  So you do operate

13 an outdoor patio?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, we do have a

15 license for that, according to my

16 understanding.  But we do have a food and a

17 close very early, like, I don't know, 12:30

18 p.m. or 1 o'clock, there'll be no one in there

19 at some point.

20             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so when you

21 say, to your understanding, you're the owner

22 and operator of this establishment, correct?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Is it primarily

3 operated, the day-to-day operations always

4 handled by a general manager, other than

5 yourself?

6             MR. DEPINHO:  I have a manager

7 that helps me out, which is the, you know, the

8 bar manager.

9             MEMBER JONES:  Understood, but the

10 day-to-day operations of the --

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Day-to-day, yes, I

12 mean, I handle like that, I do the kitchen and

13 I do the buying and all of that.

14             MEMBER JONES:  You're in charge?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

16             MEMBER JONES:  You're responsible?

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

18             MEMBER JONES:  And you're

19 accountable?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

21             MEMBER JONES:  for the day-to-day

22 operations of this establishment?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  No response.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So when you

3 say to me, to the best of your understanding,

4 or as far as you know, regarding what you're

5 allowed to do, I'm confused.

6             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

7             MEMBER JONES:  If you're not the

8 authority on that, who would be?

9             MR. DEPINHO:  Confusing more.

10             MEMBER JONES:  Are you the

11 authority on what you're permitted to do?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I mean, I am

13 the --

14             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

15             MR. DEPINHO:  -- I mean, I am the

16 --

17             MEMBER JONES:  So do you operate

18 an outdoor patio?

19             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, we do have an

20 outdoor patio.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  What are

22 your hours for your outdoor patio?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  I think my license

2 says as early as 11:00 a.m., but only open at

3 6:00 p.m., because lunchtime, that

4 neighborhood, there's no lunchtime, and trying

5 to do it, but it's, and eventually we're going

6 to do brunch time, which is, it sounded

7 rushed.

8             MEMBER JONES:  So you open at 6:00

9 p.m., is this, how many days a week, six days

10 a week, since you're closed on Monday?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Six days a week,

12 closed on Monday, yes.

13             MEMBER JONES:  All right.  So you

14 have an outdoor patio six days a week?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, six days a

16 week.

17             MEMBER JONES:  And --

18             MR. DEPINHO:  But --

19             (Crosstalk)

20             MEMBER JONES:  -- it starts at

21 6:00 p.m. and goes until when?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  The outdoors, it
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1 goes to 12:00 a.m., 12:30 a.m., that's the

2 maximum.  On the weekends, it could go a

3 little longer, but I mean, you --

4             MEMBER JONES:  So on the weekends

5 it can go up until, what's the latest time?

6             MR. DEPINHO:  I'd say like to 2

7 o'clock.

8             MEMBER JONES:  Two o'clock?

9             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

10             MEMBER JONES:  All right.  So from

11 6:00 p.m. until 2:00 a.m. on the weekends?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

13             MEMBER JONES:  And 6:00 p.m. until

14 roughly 12:30 a.m. during the week, you

15 operate your outdoor patio?

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, there's not

17 much going on in there in that time.

18             MEMBER JONES:  Understood.  Was

19 the nature of your business operations on your

20 outdoor patio, you mentioned earlier you serve

21 food, what else do you do on your outdoor

22 patio?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Serve food and then

2 beverage.

3             MEMBER JONES:  Food and beverage?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

5             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  How do you

6 access, how does your wait staff, well, I

7 don't even know how you're set up.  How do

8 people get access to food and beverage on your

9 patio?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  There's a door, you

11 open the door, so door goes around and goes to

12 the patio.

13             MEMBER JONES:  So I'm a patron in

14 your establishment, and I want to sit in the

15 outdoor patio.  If I want a drink, do I need

16 to get up from the outdoor patio and go into

17 the bar, or is a waiter going to take my

18 order?

19             MR. DEPINHO:  Waitress go to the

20 table, okay.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So you have

22 a waitress or waiter that comes to the table
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1 and take my order?

2             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

3             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Do you have

4 entertainment going on inside your

5 establishment during the hours from 6:00 p.m.

6 to 12:30 a.m. during the week, or 6:00 p.m. to

7 2:00 a.m. on the weekend?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  During the week, you

9 have from 10:00 p.m., 10:30 p.m., depends on

10 the, on the weekends 10:30 p.m., never before

11 10:30 p.m., close to 11:00 p.m., on the

12 weekends.

13             MEMBER JONES:  So your

14 entertainment starts as at 10:30 p.m. on the

15 weekends.

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Try to start.  And

17 weekdays it depends on the music, but 9:30

18 p.m., 10 o'clock, and it goes on to 1 o'clock

19 at the latest.

20             MEMBER JONES:  So 9:30 p.m. to

21 1:00 --

22             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  -- a.m., during the

2 week, and 10:30 p.m. until close.

3             MR. DEPINHO:  2:00 a.m.

4             MEMBER JONES:  2:00 a.m.

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

6             MEMBER JONES:  On the weekends.

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

8             MEMBER JONES:  All right.  And

9 just to make sure I'm clear.  So your outdoor

10 patio is in operation six days a week, serving

11 approximately 15 to 16 people, correct?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  If you, various

13 people --

14             MEMBER JONES:  Food?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  -- there are a lot

16 of people.

17             MEMBER JONES:  Food?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  The capacity, yes.

19             MEMBER JONES:  Capacity's 15 to

20 16, in that area?

21             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.  I have a --

22             MEMBER JONES:  Is --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Yes?

3             MR. DEPINHO:  Fifteen, say more

4 fifteen people.

5             MEMBER JONES:  Fifteen, okay.  So

6 let's go with 15.  That's your number.  That's

7 fine.  So outdoor patio's in operation six

8 days a week, from 6:00 p.m. to 12:30 a.m.

9             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

10             MEMBER JONES:  And 6:00 p.m. to

11 2:00 a.m. weekdays and weekends, respectively. 

12 You have entertainment, live music, in your

13 establishment from 9:30 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. and

14 10:30 p.m. to 2:00 a.m.

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Well you have

16 Tuesday --

17             MEMBER JONES:  -- weekdays and

18 weekends, respectively, am I understanding

19 what you just told me, correctly?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

22             MR. DEPINHO:  Tuesday through
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1 Thursday is 9:30 p.m. to 1:00 a.m.  And Friday

2 and Saturdays, yes, it goes until 2 o'clock.

3             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, got it.  So

4 when you are bring food, beverage, et cetera,

5 to your patrons that are on your outdoor

6 patio, up until 12:30 a.m. and up until 2:00

7 a.m. on the weekends, how is your wait staff

8 gaining access to the outdoor patio, do they

9 use the front door?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Through the door

11 that they open.

12             MEMBER JONES:  They open the front

13 door?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  The front door, yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So when that

16 front door is open, do you have a signal to

17 tell the band to stop playing?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  No, I mean, they

19 play, and they have a little curtain.  They --

20             MEMBER JONES:  They have a little

21 curtain?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, there's a



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 102

1 curtain on the door.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  What is the

3 purpose of that curtain?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Also to prevent, you

5 know, like some people open the door, so the

6 music will go, you know, it's not a double

7 door, it's one door.  It's an old building,

8 and then there is a curtain in there and --

9             MEMBER JONES:  So it's a single

10 door.

11             MR. DEPINHO:  It's single door.

12             MEMBER JONES:  Single door, so

13 when you open that door you can hear what's

14 going on, on the inside of your establishment,

15 based on where your stage is located, which

16 appears to be very near your front door.

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

18             MEMBER JONES:  There's, if I

19 looked at the exhibit that Mr. Brooks was

20 pointing to, which I believe was 12, yes, yes,

21 Exhibit 12, there's a guitar, or some type of

22 acoustic instrument that is mounted and
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1 propped up against the window.  That window

2 appears to be adjacent or next to your front

3 door entrance.

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

5             MEMBER JONES:  And there's a

6 stage.

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, this is the

8 stage.  This is one of the panels that goes on

9 the side here.

10             MEMBER JONES:  Is that, where

11 you're pointing is to the right of the --

12             MR. DEPINHO:  To the right.

13             MEMBER JONES:  -- picture noted as

14 Exhibit 12.

15             MR. DEPINHO:  This is, as you go

16 around the --

17             MEMBER JONES:  For the record,

18 just for the record, you're pointing to the

19 right side of Exhibit 12, is that correct?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Is that the

22 same side where your front door entrance is?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, the right side.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Your property

3 ingress and egress is right there?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, and on this --

5             MEMBER JONES:  To the right side?

6             MR. DEPINHO:  -- side is a wall,

7 yes.

8             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.

9             MR. DEPINHO:  That door's

10 mandatory.

11             MEMBER JONES:  So I see microphone

12 stands, I see guitar stands, and I see a

13 raised platform area.

14             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  Is that what you

16 would consider to be your stage, and this is

17 the area where your band would be playing?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

19             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  And directly

20 to the right of that, as I'm looking at this

21 picture, is your front door?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  So when your wait

2 staff goes in and out to provide service to

3 your patrons on your patio, that front door is

4 open?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  It's open, yes.

6             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  And you're

7 servicing up to 15 people, from the hours of

8 6:00 p.m. to 12:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. to 2:00

9 a.m.  So there's an overlap of when you have

10 entertainment, live music, in your

11 establishment and the time that you're serving

12 your outdoor patrons, is that a fair, am I

13 understanding what you're telling me,

14 correctly?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Like, overlap?  I

16 mean --

17             MEMBER JONES:  Overlap, in terms

18 of time.

19             MR. DEPINHO:  I mean, this --

20             MEMBER JONES:  So you're having

21 entertainment from 9:30 p.m. until 1:00 a.m.,

22 during the week.
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Okay.

2             MEMBER JONES:  You're servicing

3 your outdoor patio from 6:00 p.m. until 12:30

4 a.m., which means there's an overlap of 9:30

5 p.m. until 12:30 a.m., when you're having live

6 music that is in your establishment, but is

7 emanating through the opened and closed front,

8 which has to be accessed by your service staff

9 in order to provide service to your patrons.

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

11             MEMBER JONES:  So that overlap,

12 there would appear to be some times where your

13 front door is opened by your wait staff in

14 order to provide food and beverage to your

15 patrons on your patio.

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, there's people

17 coming in and out of the place, because of the

18 front door.

19             MEMBER JONES:  So is that a yes,

20 that there's overlap, am I understanding that

21 correctly?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  What is an overlap,
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1 exactly?

2             MEMBER JONES:  Overlap is in terms

3 of your time.  So you have times when you have

4 people service, or you're providing service to

5 patrons on your patio, you gave me those

6 times.  That overlaps, or corresponds to, or

7 is that the same time as you're having

8 entertainment going on in your establishment,

9 based on the times that you gave me for your

10 entertainment?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  When we have music

12 there, people sitting outside, you serve them,

13 actually.

14             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So --

15             MR. DEPINHO:  But none of the

16 windows open, only the door that's opened.

17             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so --

18             MR. DEPINHO:  In and out, because

19 it's the only door you have.

20             MEMBER JONES:  What are you doing

21 to prevent noise from emanating out of your

22 opened front door --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  We have a --

2             MEMBER JONES:  -- when you have

3 live --

4             MR. DEPINHO:  -- curtain there

5 that doesn't, you know, that --

6             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Please let

7 him finish the question.

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Okay.

9             MEMBER JONES:  What are you doing

10 to prevent noise from emanating from your

11 establishment when your door is being opened,

12 to service your patrons, by your wait staff,

13 and/or when it's just being opened by patrons

14 that need to gain access to your

15 establishment, to use the bathroom, for

16 example?

17             MR. DEPINHO:  It's a curtain there

18 that prevents, you know, before you get to the

19 door, and it doesn't leak much of the music,

20 because it's a little, you know, entrance that

21 you come through, and then there is a door,

22 and there's a little curtain, it comes in and
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1 it goes through the --

2             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So if I were

3 to characterize your statement, you have a

4 noise dampening curtain that is in place --

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, and doesn't,

6 they're on the stage here, and noise not

7 travel towards that door, as much.

8             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, I am, you

9 know this because you've done a sound

10 engineering study?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, whoever --

12             MEMBER JONES:  Or is this just a

13 --

14             MR. DEPINHO:  -- before me, had --

15             MEMBER JONES:  -- personal

16 assessment of gut feel?

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, for me, the

18 way it's designed there, is to prevent any

19 music to going through the door, my

20 understanding of that.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So you heard

22 the testimony of Investigator Apraku, correct? 
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1 He indicated that he could hear music

2 emanating from your establishment, with the

3 doors and window closed, from approximately

4 ten feet away.

5             And that he could clearly identify

6 music coming from your establishment

7 approximately ten feet away, with your doors

8 and windows closed.  I am not understanding,

9 is the curtain in place the whole time, or is

10 it only in place when the door is opened?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, I mean, the

12 curtain, people open, you know, can open and

13 close the curtain.  So I mean, I can't, I

14 can't, my best knowledge.

15             But my understanding, in the

16 place, I mean, is never loud, I mean, if you

17 go and stand in front of Bossa.  If you open

18 the door, yes, some music, eventually, whether

19 it be an iPod, whatever music in between

20 there.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Let's talk

22 about the operations there.  So you mentioned
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1 you had a partner, your own testimony.

2             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

3             MEMBER JONES:  Is that a fair

4 statement?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

6             MEMBER JONES:  Do you still have a

7 partner, based on your testimony --

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

9             MEMBER JONES:  -- you provided

10 earlier?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Or investor.

12             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, what is the

13 nature of your relationship with this partner?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  I'm the manager,

15 owner.

16             MEMBER JONES:  What is his role in

17 it, is he just an investor?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  No, he provides the

19 music also, like he --

20             (Crosstalk)

21             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so he's

22 responsible for coordinating the music?
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, what function

3 does he perform in that, and how does he vet

4 that, how does he get your approval of what is

5 acceptable, from the music standards, in the

6 process of setting up the entertainment?

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, it starts in

8 between Brazilian music, between jazz, between

9 world music, which is my understanding, in

10 that what we do.

11             As a Brazilian, you do a lot of

12 bossa nova, as a jazzy, we do play jazz, we

13 play music from West Africa, from Mali, from

14 those like, mostly acoustic, play the Sunday

15 nights, sometimes we have bands from New York

16 play old music.

17             (Off the record comments)

18             MEMBER JONES:  And not to cut you

19 off, but I'm just trying to get a

20 clarification on what's the role of the

21 individual that is responsible for booking

22 entertainment --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Well he books and

2 then he discuss what's best for the

3 entertainment.

4             MEMBER JONES:  So just to be

5 clear, what's the role, in terms of the

6 individual responsible for booking the

7 entertainment, and as it relates to you, as

8 the manager of the establishment, does he have

9 to get approval from you before he books

10 entertainment?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Well usually we

12 discuss among ourselves in a partnership

13 manner, which is what's best for the place.

14             MEMBER JONES:  What's best.  Okay.

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

16             MEMBER JONES:  So do you enter

17 into contracts with your entertainment?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  You contact them

19 before, some of them has been playing there

20 for a while.

21             MEMBER JONES:  Do you enter into

22 contracts, legally binding contracts with your
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1 entertainment?

2             MR. DEPINHO:  I believe not.  I

3 mean, I don't, but --

4             MEMBER JONES:  No?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Just, you know, they

6 usually, they come in and then you hire them

7 and if, you know, and then --

8             MEMBER JONES:  I'm getting the

9 impression --

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Kind of like a

11 verbal contract, not like a signed contract.

12             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  So you have

13 a verbal contract.  With whom do the parties

14 enter into that verbal contract with, do they

15 enter into it with you --

16             MR. DEPINHO:  It's my associate,

17 sometimes, it's me.  And then they contact me

18 and say this is the music, it's fit for Bossa,

19 and then you go from there.

20             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, but sometimes

21 they don't.  And when they don't, how does

22 entertainment get established in your --
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1             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, somebody's got

2 to approve it down to me, I mean, at some

3 point.

4             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so bottom

5 line, you have final signature --

6             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, to say yes, yes

7 or no, yes.

8             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, you have the

9 final say-so on yes, or no, on entertainment,

10 okay.  Has there ever been any entertainment

11 there that played at your establishment that

12 was not vetted and/or approved, by you

13 directly?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, basically, all

15 through me, you know, like, everything comes

16 through me, you know --

17             (Crosstalk)

18             MEMBER JONES:  Everything comes to

19 you?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  And then I hire, and

21 then, of course, we consider to others, when

22 you're trying to be flexible.  At times you,
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1 whether for example, if a musician, acoustic

2 musician, some of those got about it, or I

3 know I have some understanding.  My

4 understanding, mostly, on the Brazilian bossa,

5 and some jazz, American Jazz, sometimes.

6             My associate sometimes brings some

7 members from New York, plays World music,

8 music from Mali, old Irish music, and all of

9 that.  That's more his understanding.  But

10 always consulted to, through me and to me.

11             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  The staff at

12 your establishment, you have final say-so in

13 terms of hiring --

14             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I mean --

15             (Off the record comments)

16             MEMBER JONES:  -- and employment

17 status, for your staff?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I mean, yes,

19 because it's a small place.  It's not like,

20 it's not a huge operation, it's like a small

21 little bistro.

22             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so the size
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1 of it isn't as relevant to me, right now, I'm

2 just trying to understand, regardless if

3 there's two employees or 200 employees, you

4 have final say-so --

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

6             MEMBER JONES:  -- on all hiring.

7             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

8             MEMBER JONES:  And you have final

9 say-so on all entertainment?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

11             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Thank you. 

12 Thank you, Madam Chair.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Others?  I

14 just have a few on a different topic.  How

15 long have you had the restaurant?

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Two years.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Two years?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  Two, October 2010.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  What

20 was the restaurant there, there was a

21 restaurant there before it?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right,

2 what was that called?

3             MR. DEPINHO:  It was Bossa, not

4 Brazilian Bistro, it was Bossa Restaurant.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Bossa?

6             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, it was a

7 different corporation.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh, okay.  Do

9 you have a settlement agreement with anyone?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  A settlement

11 agreement?

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Settlement

13 agreement, with respect to the ABRA --

14             MEMBER JONES:  So just to be

15 clear, so it's not necessarily -- sorry to

16 interrupt.  But I noticed that he did it a

17 little bit when I was asking you questions.

18             I don't know how appropriate it is

19 for you to look to your counsel to get answers

20 to the questions.  If you don't have a good

21 answer, then your counsel should have

22 addressed you appropriately, as to how to
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1 handle that situation.

2             MR. DEPINHO:  Okay.

3             MEMBER JONES:  But now is not the

4 time to be learning on the fly.  Okay.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  If you don't

6 understand my question, feel free to ask me to

7 clarify, okay?

8             MR. DEPINHO:  Okay, Your Honor.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So I may need

10 to clarify here, because we have what's called

11 settlement agreements or voluntary agreements,

12 in which restaurants and bars enter into with

13 residents, and come to an agreement to avoid,

14 you know, a protest hearing, or this --

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, my

16 understanding, when I had that was the ANC,

17 that I spoke to, I think, a Mr. William, or --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

19             MR. DEPINHO:  -- or someone.  They

20 never had any complaint, I mean, now as I go

21 through this process of ownership, and then,

22 but as far as I know, that's --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

2             MR. DEPINHO:  Then I had this

3 protest from Kalorama Citizens' Association,

4 and that's my understanding.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  And so

6 --

7             MR. DEPINHO:  And according to

8 your records, I mean I, you have the previous

9 agreement, according to my lawyer, with

10 Kalorama Citizens' Association, when you

11 purchase this licenses.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, so you

13 --

14             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- kind of

16 inherited --

17             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- an

19 agreement?

20             MR. DEPINHO:  From the old

21 establishment.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Has
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1 there been any complaints of your --

2             MR. DEPINHO:  No, no.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- violating

4 that agreement?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  Not that I know of.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay,

7 that's all my questions.

8             (Off the record comments)

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Nick?

10             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Mr. Depinho, I'm

11 a little confused by your reference to a

12 partner.  You keep talking about a partner. 

13 What is your partner's role with this

14 establishment?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  He's, I mean, he

16 doesn't have much of a, I mean, in the

17 management, I am the manager, you know, the

18 one that manages the establishment, he's only

19 a partner.

20             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.  Well --

21             MR. DEPINHO:  And he --

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Excuse me.  When
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1 I hear the word, partner, I usually, I start

2 to think of someone who has an interest in the

3 business, of some sort.

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Well, he --

5             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Let me finish.

6             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

7             MEMBER ALBERTI:  So Tropicalia

8 Project, LLC, that's the business that owns

9 the license, correct?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  All right.  And

12 you're a member of that LLC?

13             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, yes.

14             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Are there any

15 other members of that LLC?

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Just my associate,

17 Rob Coltun, yes.

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  What's his name?

19             MR. DEPINHO:  Robert Coltun,

20 C-O-L-T-U-N.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  C-O-L-T?

22             MR. DEPINHO:  It's Rob, U-N,
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1 Coltun.

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  U-N, Coltun.  And

3 so what is your share of this -- is there any

4 other partners to the LLC?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  No, just the two of

6 us.

7             MEMBER ALBERTI:  How long has he

8 been a partner of the LLC?

9             MR. DEPINHO:  Of this, with me?

10             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Yes.

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Since I purchase

12 venture.

13             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Since you

14 purchased?

15             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

16             MEMBER ALBERTI:  And what is your

17 percentage ownership of this LLC?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  If I remember, 51,

19 or 50, I --

20             MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Alberti.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No.  Please sit

22 down, Mr. Bianco.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  If I may --

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Wait.

3             MR. BIANCO:  If I may --

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Wait.

5             MR. BIANCO:  -- briefly --

6             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Please --

7             MR. BIANCO:  -- and --

8             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Please sit down.

9             MR. BIANCO:  -- with all due

10 respect --

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I'm not having

12 any problems with these questions and answers. 

13 Please sit down.  So 51 percent?

14             MR. DEPINHO:  I think 50, 50 or

15 51, I'm not so sure, but I am the managing so

16 you, I suppose you have a manage, as a

17 manager, I manage the place and I make the

18 decisions, and --

19             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, I am the --

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Thank you.  I

22 have no further questions.
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1             MR. BIANCO:  Madam Chair, if I

2 may, for the record, briefly?

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

4             MR. BIANCO:  The issue before the

5 Board is not one of ownership, this is not a

6 fact finding hearing.  With regard to that,

7 and we had the opportunity to prepare for such

8 questions.

9             So in the event that, on the fly,

10 my client has provided information about the

11 ownership structure that may not accurately

12 reflect the actuality of the ownership

13 structure, we would like to reserve all rights

14 with regard to that issue, since it's not

15 before the Board today.

16             In the event that we're called up

17 on a fact finding hearing, what I don't want

18 to deal with, at that particular hearing,

19 would be hey, but on such and such a date, you

20 said something inconsistent with what you're

21 telling me today.

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Madam Chair, may



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 126

1 I address that?

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Mr. Bianco, I

4 understand perfectly well that that is not a

5 matter that is relevant to peace, order and

6 quiet, property values, or traffic concerns.

7             But, since we had your client

8 here, I thought I would at least get that

9 information before us, and then the Board can

10 use that, or act on that information, as

11 appropriate.

12             And you're correct, we would give

13 you, your client, fair opportunity to address

14 that issue, if at some point we decided to

15 examine the information that was provided

16 today.

17             MR. BIANCO:  And I understand, Mr.

18 Alberti.  And please don't misunderstand me,

19 I'm not objecting to the Board's line of

20 questioning.

21             The Board's entitled to inquire

22 what the Board would like to inquire to.  I
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1 just wanted to make sure the record is

2 clarified as to our reservation of rights on

3 any matters that come before the Board today

4 that are --

5             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.

6             MR. BIANCO:  -- essential to the

7 hearing.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So

9 noted.  Let's see if we can get back on track

10 here.  Are there any questions on, Board

11 questions, related to peace, order, quiet, the

12 subject of this hearing?

13             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Yes.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Wait. 

15 Okay.

16             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Well, related to

17 the Board's questions, right?

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No, I don't

19 think I want everybody to start getting more

20 into that line questioning, which wasn't --

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No, I didn't say

22 that, but --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But that --

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- I mean, this

3 round of questioning would be based on the

4 questions the Board had?

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.

6             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Those are the

8 Board questions --

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Right.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- subject to

11 the caveat that only related to peace, order,

12 quiet, the subject of this hearing.  Okay.

13             MR. JAMES:  I would like to

14 follow-up on some of the Board questions.  How

15 many staff members does Bossa have?

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Between musicians,

17 or what, what kind?

18             MR. JAMES:  No, those who prepare

19 food, tend the bar, or wait staff, management.

20             MR. DEPINHO:  Twelve.  And it

21 depends on the, you know, all of the

22 part-timers, depends on the business.



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 129

1             MR. JAMES:  And of those 12, I

2 believe you mentioned earlier that you have

3 two ABC Licensed managers?

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

5             MR. JAMES:  And you, of course,

6 yourself, are considered to be that, by your

7 presence at the establishment.  So at times

8 that you are not present at the establishment,

9 at least one of the ABC Licensed managers that

10 you have on staff is present?

11             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes, and sometime I

12 hired people, they, it's been in the past,

13 they say they have a ABC License, and they go

14 there they don't have it, and got to go

15 through that also.

16             But here I have two employees, I

17 mean that they have in here, and they both

18 work different nights.  And most of the time

19 I'm there.  I am in the kitchen, as a chef.

20             And there was two occasions that,

21 actually, that I wasn't present, was a

22 weekday.  I can't remember the day, and I got
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1 a citation, perhaps, from coming from the

2 store and not being there, and I got that --

3             (Crosstalk)

4             MR. JAMES:  You were just running

5 out to buy some supplies, or something?

6             MR. DEPINHO:  Sometimes you run

7 some, you're allowed to go to the store, so I

8 mean --

9             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  As part of

10 Investigator Apraku's testimony, and as part

11 of the report that he put together, and I

12 believe that the report was shared a long time

13 ago, back in July, with Mr. Bianco, and I'm

14 assuming you're familiar with it, part of

15 that, there's the Voluntary Agreement --

16             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

17             MR. JAMES:  -- that applies to

18 this establishment.  May I --

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  May you

20 approach?

21             MR. JAMES:  -- give --

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.
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1             MR. JAMES:  -- Mr. Depinho a copy

2 of that?

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

4             (Off the record comments)

5             MR. JAMES:  So, Mr. Depinho, that

6 agreement, is it, what is the name of the

7 establishment that is mentioned as the --

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James?

9             MR. JAMES:  Yes?

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I'm sorry,

11 but can you identify a little bit more, what

12 the agreement is, for the record, that you're

13 referring to?

14             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Does it have

16 a name, does it have a --

17             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Oh, okay.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Just

19 to make sure we're all looking at the same

20 thing.

21             MR. JAMES:  Right.  This agreement

22 was part of the Investigative Report prepared



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 132

1 by Investigator Apraku.  And to my

2 understanding, it's the, when one requests an

3 agreement --

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So --

5             MR. JAMES:  I'll get to the

6 complete --

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, I don't

8 want you to testify too much, yes, okay.

9             MR. JAMES:  When one -- okay.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I just want

11 to know, is this called Voluntary Agreement,

12 concerning issuance of license for sale of

13 alcoholic beverages?

14             MR. JAMES:  Yes, it is.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Is that what

16 we should be looking at?  Okay.  That's what

17 I want to make sure.  Then that's attached to

18 the protest report, by the investigator.

19             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

21             MR. JAMES:  I'm not always clear,

22 precisely, what the Board is seeking.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

2             MR. JAMES:  So, Mr. Depinho, this

3 agreement, which I handed you a moment ago, in

4 which the Board has, as part of its

5 Investigative Report, is it true that it

6 states, in the very first line, that it's

7 between the Ghana Caf‚ Advisory Neighborhood

8 Commission 1C and the Kalorama Citizens'

9 Association?

10             MR. DEPINHO:  It says here, Ghana

11 Caf‚, yes.  That's what it says in here, Ghana

12 Caf‚.

13             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Okay, and this

14 is attached, is this Voluntary Agreement

15 attached to the license that was purchased,

16 which you now to operate Bossa Brazilian

17 Bistro?

18             MR. DEPINHO:  I think we had,

19 that's according to my lawyer.  We had an

20 agreement, the agreement that's here, when I

21 purchased the license.

22             MR. JAMES:  So is this agreement
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1 which you follow, according to your

2 understanding of what your requirements are,

3 as a license holder?  When you say the

4 agreement requires you to do certain things,

5 is this agreement, which I just handed you,

6 the one that you pay attention and say oh, I

7 have to do, close the windows in accordance

8 with this, or this is how many --

9             MR. DEPINHO:  No, that's to the

10 ANC, never been, the ANC, I mean, whatever was

11 in there when we purchased, plus, you know, we

12 have an agreement with the neighborhood.  So

13 and then I, it's very appropriate, we don't

14 leave the door open, by all means.

15             MR. JAMES:  Please, we're not

16 talking about specific parts, but this

17 agreement, is this agreement the one that's

18 attached to your ABC License, in which you, is

19 it forced upon you if an ABRA investigator

20 comes and says, we need to look at your, we're

21 going to do a regulatory inspection, or you

22 know, we just want to check out your
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1 establishment, do you have the Voluntary

2 Agreement?

3             MR. DEPINHO:  I think when you

4 purchase the license, I think it's the one you

5 have, that's the one, you know, you --

6             MR. JAMES:  I'll take that as a

7 yes.  Is it also true that previously you

8 referred in your testimony, I believe, when

9 you were responding to Board Member Jones,

10 that there was a previous corporation called

11 Bossa Bistro?

12             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

13             MR. JAMES:  And that license was

14 revoked.  Are you aware that there was a

15 Voluntary Agreement attached to that license,

16 and that was with ANC 1C?

17             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object

18 on relevance.  I don't know --

19             MR. DEPINHO:  I can't remember.  MR.

20 BIANCO:  -- where we're going here.  We've

21 spent the last five minutes establishing that

22 the document that was attached to the
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1 Investigative Report maintained in the Board's

2 file, is the Voluntary Agreement for this

3 establishment, is in fact the Voluntary

4 Agreement for this establishment.  I don't

5 know --

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

7             MR. BIANCO:  I don't know where

8 we're going with this, and now we're talking

9 about a previous establish that my client

10 doesn't operate.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James,

12 where are we going?

13             MR. JAMES:  We're just trying to

14 establish that a former agreement, which

15 could, you know, be construed as having

16 something to do with Bossa Bistro, was revoked

17 along with the license, it's no longer a valid

18 agreement.

19             And therefore, you know, it's not

20 just an agreement with the ANC, no, that's a

21 past agreement.  You know, Mr. Depinho seems

22 to think that he has an agreement only with
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1 the ANC, but this one that he purchased, you

2 know, the license that he purchased, is

3 between ANC and the KCA.  But I mean, I want

4 to go a lot further than that, and discussion

5 of what is appropriate --

6             (Off the record comments)

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  All

8 right, what --

9             MR. JAMES:  -- and how it effects

10 peace, order and quiet.

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Can I ask Mr.

12 James a question, because I'm not clear as to

13 what, Mr. James, you said.  Mr. James are you

14 contending that there's another Voluntary

15 Agreement that exists?

16             MR. JAMES:  Only to the revoked

17 license.  I was just trying to make that --

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No, no, no, no.

19             MR. JAMES:  -- clear for the

20 Board.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No, no, no. 

22 That's not my question.  Are you contending



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 138

1 that there's another Voluntary Agreement that

2 exists, that is attached to this license?

3             MR. JAMES:  No.  No, I'm not.

4             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.

5             MR. JAMES:  I don't wish to be

6 here at all.

7             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Are you

8 contending, that this Voluntary Agreement that

9 we have, that we have just spoke about, the

10 one attached to this report, are you

11 contesting that this is the Voluntary

12 Agreement attached to this license?

13             MR. JAMES:  No, I'm not.

14             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.  Thank you. 

15 Then I suggest we move on, because there is no

16 issue --

17             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  - with respect to

19 validity of Voluntary Agreements that are

20 attached to this license.

21             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  And so in this

22 Voluntary Agreement, which applies to Bossa
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1 Brazilian Bistro, what is the stated occupancy

2 --

3             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object

4 again.  We're not here under a show cause

5 hearing.  We're not here under any allegations

6 of violation of a Voluntary Agreement.

7             We're here to discuss peace, order

8 and quiet.  And sitting here and pointing at

9 things saying, well why are you doing this,

10 does this violate your Voluntary Agreement,

11 does that violate your Voluntary Agreement,

12 it's not before the Board.  It's litigation by

13 ambush, and --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What --

15             (Crosstalk)

16             MR. JAMES:  Well, it should be

17 considered, it's in relation to --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What is your

19 question?

20             MR. JAMES:  Member Jones asked a

21 question about --

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I didn't hear
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1 you.

2             MR. JAMES:  -- how many, how many

3 persons were allowed on the sidewalk caf‚,

4 surely we can talk about how many are allowed

5 inside the building itself.

6             MR. BIANCO:  All of which is

7 contained in the Board's files, part of the

8 license, we don't need to have testimony on it

9 and spend all day establishing what's already

10 established.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Are you going

12 to be moving in the area that he's been

13 violating it?  If he's been violating it,

14 that's where you're going, then that might go

15 to peace, order and quiet.  So I'm not sure

16 where you're going with asking him the number,

17 why don't --

18             MALE PARTICIPANT:  Just overrule

19 and let him ask.

20             MR. JAMES:  The permissions that

21 he inherited in the old agreement do not

22 comport with his building.  We will be showing
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1 that when we, when I make my statement.  So

2 I'm just trying to establish that through --

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Could you

4 just --

5             MR. JAMES:  -- this agreement,

6 while the owner is on the stand.

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Are you

8 saying the conditions don't comport with --

9             MR. JAMES:  With his building,

10 with his certificate of occupancy, with how

11 many persons he can seat for his dinner,

12 which, you know, his food requirement.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right.

14             (Crosstalk)

15             MR. JAMES:  I'm just trying to

16 present to the Board some of the numbers

17 involved with this operation, and how it, you

18 know, this Voluntary Agreement -- he just

19 purchased an agreement but it doesn't, it's

20 for a different building, therefore it doesn't

21 work with this building, and it leads to

22 peace, order and quiet concerns in the
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1 neighborhood.

2             MR. BIANCO:  It's been clear

3 throughout this process, through the filing of

4 the protest, and even through the filing of

5 the protest information sheet, that it's been

6 Mr. James' goal to change the Voluntary

7 Agreement.

8             However, what Mr. James, the KCA,

9 and the ANC, have not done is go through any

10 procedure that would be required by law, in

11 order to modify a Voluntary Agreement.

12             So we're not here to talk about

13 modification of a Voluntary Agreement, or

14 whether the Voluntary Agreement works

15 optimally with my client's establishment.

16             We're here to talk about whether

17 or not my client's operation adversely impacts

18 the peace, order and quiet.  None of this

19 relates to that in any material way,

20 whatsoever.

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  I

22 really can't tell where you're going.  It's
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1 true, if you're going to make some kind of

2 connection between your question about

3 occupancy and adverse impact then, you know,

4 you can proceed.  I don't know where --

5             MR. JAMES:  Well --

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- if that's

7 where you're going.

8             MR. JAMES:  I might not get all

9 the way to that, through this witness, but I

10 might be able --

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But this --

12             MR. JAMES:  -- to get there when I

13 speak --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Well you can

15 in yours, but this is cross examination of

16 him.

17             MR. JAMES:  Based on some of the

18 things that the Board said.  And I'm sorry if

19 it's, you know, like we spend a lot of time

20 talking about whether I can ask the question

21 -- anyway.

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Madam Chair, may
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1 I just speak towards that?  Mr. James, I hear

2 what you're saying, because I'm listening very

3 closely.  You said there's an issue of whether

4 this is the correct Voluntary Agreement for

5 this license, in terms of officially.  I mean,

6 you said, that it's a Voluntary Agreement for

7 a different building.

8             MR. JAMES:  That's absolutely

9 true.

10             MEMBER ALBERTI:  All right.  So if

11 there are questions that you need to ask him

12 to establish that, then be very focused on it. 

13 But otherwise, I think it's through your

14 testimony, if you want to make that point that

15 it is somehow relevant to this hearing, then

16 I think you can do that through your

17 testimony.  But I don't know if this, I don't

18 know if this witness can shed light on that.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Plus, these

20 are questions based on Board questions.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Unless there are

22 some facts that you need to establish.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  I think that, I'm

2 struggling with this, because I think we're --

3             MALE PARTICIPANT:  Fishing.

4             MEMBER JONES:  Well, I think we're

5 preventing him from being able to gather the

6 facts that may help provide support for his

7 case that he has, that we haven't even heard

8 yet.

9             (Off the record comments)

10             MR. JAMES:  Right.

11             MEMBER JONES:  It's like telling

12 him he can't ask, how many people do you have

13 in your place?  It may be relevant, because we

14 haven't heard what his case is going to be

15 yet.

16             MR. JAMES:  Right.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But this --

18             MEMBER JONES:  What if we find out

19 later that it is relevant and we have done him

20 a disservice by not allowing him to ask the

21 questions.  So I don't know why we're spending

22 five minutes talking about whether he can ask



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 146

1 a question.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Because we

3 have certain rules of procedure, and we're at

4 the point where, we're at the end where the

5 questions are only based on Board questions,

6 it's not --

7             MEMBER JONES:  And the questions

8 were based on Board questions.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- a time to

10 open up for --

11             MEMBER JONES:  He's already

12 established --

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

14             MEMBER JONES:  -- the fact that it

15 was --

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That's what

17 I'm saying --

18             MEMBER JONES:  -- so once

19 established it, why were you still questioning

20 him on it.  I think he wants --

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

22             MEMBER JONES:  -- to establish it,
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1 let him ask the questions, so we can move on.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I don't know

3 what it was, I know it wasn't established, but

4 if --

5             MEMBER JONES:  All I'm saying --

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But all I'm

7 saying is --

8             MEMBER JONES:  Did you not answer

9 her question about how it was related to my

10 questions that I asked earlier about

11 occupancy?

12             MR. JAMES:  I did make that

13 ascertain.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MEMBER JONES:  So he made that

16 ascertain.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right.

18             MEMBER JONES:  You either accept

19 it, or you don't.  If you don't, then you

20 don't allow to ask the question, if you do,

21 then you let him ask the question.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you,
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1 Mr. Jones.

2             MEMBER JONES:  We don't keep going

3 back and forth.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you,

5 Mr. Jones.  Okay.

6             MEMBER JONES:  You're very

7 welcome, Madam Chair.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Now the point

9 is --

10             MEMBER JONES:  You're very

11 welcome, Madam Chair.  What?  Saying it twice

12 is going to make it more relevant?

13             (Off the record comments)

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, Mr.

15 James, what I would say is, you can ask a

16 question related to occupancy, provided it's

17 related to also the subject of this hearing,

18 which is adverse impacts of this

19 establishment.

20             MR. JAMES:  I believe that I will

21 attempt to bring out all the points that I

22 wish to bring out in my statement to the
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1 Board.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, that'll

3 be good.  Okay.

4             MR. JAMES:  And try to cut to the

5 chase.  I would just like to ask one further

6 about this, and it's not to do with occupancy,

7 that's why we have Mr. Depinho, here.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

9             MR. JAMES:  So on this agreement

10 that, you know, we've been talking about for

11 the last few minutes --

12             (Off the record comments)

13             MR. JAMES:  -- what address is

14 stated on the very front page --

15             (Off the record comments)

16             MR. JAMES:  -- for the Ghana Caf‚,

17 it's in the second paragraph?

18             (Off the record comments)

19             MR. JAMES:  On this very front

20 page.

21             MR. DEPINHO:  Yes.

22             MR. JAMES:  So in the second
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1 paragraph.

2             MR. DEPINHO:  Is it 2465?

3             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  And the address

4 of Bossa Brazilian Bistro is?

5             MR. DEPINHO:  2463.

6             MR. JAMES:  Thank you, very much.

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Did you say

8 2468?

9             MR. DEPINHO:  63, I think.

10             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  63?

12             MR. JAMES:  I need to ask one more

13 question.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MR. JAMES:  The 2465 address is

16 directly next door to your current location,

17 is that correct?

18             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  There we go. 

19 Thank you, very much.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Is

21 there, do you have any questions based on the

22 Board's, or re-direct?



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 151

1             MR. BIANCO:  No.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right. 

3 Okay.  Thank you, very much, sir.

4             MR. DEPINHO:  Thank you.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James,

6 you can take a minute to get organized.

7             MR. JAMES:  A lot of pieces of

8 paper --

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

10             MR. JAMES:  -- if I'm going to be

11 there, so not to --

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It's really

13 --

14             MR. JAMES:  -- anger of the

15 hearing --

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James, if

17 it's too difficult to be there, you can be

18 there.

19             MR. JAMES:  Would that be all

20 right with the Board?

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That will be

22 all right.
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1             MR. JAMES:  If Mr. Bianco doesn't

2 object?

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Is it going

4 to be problem?

5             MR. JAMES:  I'd be glad to stand

6 there to be sworn if that's what you --

7             (Crosstalk)

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That's all

9 right, I thought you had a --

10             MR. BIANCO:  I don't have a

11 problem with him testifying --

12             (Crosstalk)

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I thought

14 your --

15             MR. JAMES:  Thank you, very much.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- leg was

17 bothering you, as well.

18             MR. JAMES:  I wish to, you know, I

19 have adequate copies, as required by the

20 Board, of the various documents that I wish --

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

22             MR. JAMES:  -- to speak about.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Well,

2 let me swear you in.

3             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do you swear,

5 to tell the truth, the whole truth, nothing

6 but the truth?

7             MR. JAMES:  Yes, I do.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

9             MR. JAMES:  So as I began to state

10 earlier, the KCA is concerned, generally, with

11 improving the peace, order and quiet, and with

12 -- yes, let me start over.

13             We're concerned about the peace,

14 order and quiet in Adams Morgan.  And we pay

15 attention at renewal time to anything that

16 could lead to such disturbance, or, you know,

17 we pay, we examine renewal applications and

18 the placarding's that go on, and any other

19 information that we can find, to determine

20 whether we can improve the overall peace,

21 order and quiet situation in our very troubled

22 neighborhood.
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1             So when I saw the placard, the

2 renewal placard, for this establishment and it

3 did not contain a sidewalk caf‚ endorsement,

4 I said, oh well, what's this about, let's look

5 into this.

6             So I requested documents from

7 ABRA's record manager, Mr. William Hager, and

8 received various documents that led me to

9 understand that there were licensing issues

10 here that helped the establishment contribute

11 to, you know, a lack of peace, order and

12 quiet, just because it's unclear what the

13 permissions are.

14             An ABRA investigator looking at

15 the Voluntary Agreement, or examining the file

16 to see what the permissions are, it would not

17 be a clear picture.  So if I might start with

18 the 2010 transfer application.  Do you want me

19 to give -- what's the --

20             (Off the record comments)

21             MR. JAMES:  Exhibit numbers on all

22 these different things?



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 155

1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes, if you

2 want them in, as exhibits --

3             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- you

5 should.  And --

6             MR. JAMES:  So let's, if we might

7 call the 2010 Transfer Application, Exhibit 1,

8 KCA Exhibit 1.

9             (Off the record comments)

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, if you

11 give it to Ms. Walker, she can give another

12 copy to the Applicant.

13             (Off the record comments)

14             MR. BIANCO:  Hang on, I need a

15 second, have your brief indulgence, while I

16 read the document, and make an objection, if

17 not.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right, he's

19 just passing out right now.

20             MR. JAMES:  So while Mr. Bianco is

21 having a look, I would just like to state that

22 the KCA attended the mediation.  And we
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1 proffered a different voluntary, I mean, a

2 different agreement, that we thought would be

3 appropriate for this license, based on the

4 existing agreement, and then the things that

5 we discovered, while we were looking at all of

6 the documents.  And the Applicant was not

7 interested in making any changes to, you know,

8 the existing agreement.

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Ms. Miller, we're

10 hearing now testimony on, I believe, on

11 negotiations that occurred, which I'm

12 surprised there's not an objection from Mr.

13 Bianco.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I know.

15             MR. JAMES:  But we didn't talk

16 about anything --

17             (Crosstalk)

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  But I will

19 object, because that's not relevant.  We

20 cannot discuss, we cannot take that

21 information and as --

22             MR. JAMES:  If I was talking about
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1 any specific provision, I would agree with

2 you.  Because we don't wish to do that.  We

3 understand the settlement discussion is

4 verboten, but I do wish the Board to

5 understand, that we didn't just go to a

6 mediation and sit there and be argumentative,

7 we went --

8             (Off the record comments)

9             MR. JAMES:  -- attempting to

10 resolve the protest.

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I also note --

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

13             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- what is also

14 troubling is that Mr. James is speaking while

15 Mr. Bianco is given the privilege of reviewing

16 the documents that were to be presented in

17 evidence.  I think it's unfair to Mr. Bianco

18 to have to listen to testimony while he's

19 reviewing documents, and so I would like to --

20             MR. JAMES:  I apologize for that,

21 I --

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- keep this
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1 structured here, so that everything's fair to

2 all parties.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.  Okay.

4             MR. BIANCO:  Thank you, Mr.

5 Alberti.  I've actually have concluded my

6 review of the document.  And provided it's

7 authentic, I don't have an objection to the

8 Board admitting into evidence documents in its

9 own file.  I think it may --

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.

11             MR. BIANCO:  -- be repetitive, but

12 I'm not --

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.

14             MR. BIANCO:  -- going to object.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So Mr.

16 James, will you --

17             MR. JAMES:  And so on Page 2 --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James do

19 you want this into evidence?  You want this in

20 evidence --

21             MR. JAMES:  Yes, I do.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- to be
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1 Exhibit 1, correct?

2             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

4             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

6             MR. JAMES:  So on the second page,

7 they're not numbered, per say, but on the

8 second page it says the license for Bossa, and

9 it says endorsements, cover charge,

10 entertainment, but there's no mention of

11 sidewalk caf‚.

12             Moving to the next page, on Item

13 Number 7, it says, number of seating, 62,

14 capacity 150.  So --

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What page is

16 that?

17             MR. JAMES:  The very next page,

18 the ABRA Application, so this --

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

20             MALE PARTICIPANT:  Keep going.

21             MR. JAMES:  -- down to Number 7,

22 number of seating.  So the question is, why is
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1 there a 62 written there, you know, there's a

2 capacity of 150, what does the 62 denote?

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It says, Mr.

4 James --

5             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Are you asking us

6 questions, or are you providing testimony?

7             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No, so where

9 --

10             (Microphone noises)

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Sorry.  Where

12 are you going with this, with respect to

13 staying on focus to peace, order and quiet? 

14 I understood what you were saying about

15 clarity, perhaps, you know, if there's a lack

16 of clarity then that may contribute to the

17 problem.  But I'm not sure where you're going

18 with your leading us through this --

19             (Crosstalk)

20             MR. JAMES:  KCA would attempt to

21 argue to the Board that for a restaurant that

22 has entertainment six nights a week, it's much
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1 more likely to cause disturbance to the peace,

2 order and quiet, if it's not meeting its food

3 requirement.  If it's busy meeting its food

4 requirement, the patrons are eating, they're

5 getting less intoxicated, so we want to know

6 what number.  We argue that if the number is

7 62, or to meet its food service requirement,

8 then the --

9             (Off the record comments)

10             MR. JAMES:  -- then the opposed

11 settlement agreement, or any settlement

12 agreement should reflect that number.

13             (Off the record comments)

14             MR. JAMES:  And the capacity of

15 150, you know, while there may be a legal

16 certificate of occupancy, how can ABRA, you

17 know, look at this line and understand what's

18 going on in this establishment?  Is it 62, or

19 is it 150?

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  All

21 right.

22             MR. BIANCO:  Madam Chair, and I
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1 think Mr. Alberti noted correctly, that I had

2 been objecting.  I think that sort of going

3 down this path, has demonstrated to the Board

4 the absolute irrelevance of this entire line

5 of going through the --

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

7             MR. BIANCO:  -- Applicant's

8 licensor file.  He's approved for what he's

9 approved for.  The documents are on record,

10 you have them, if there's some contention that

11 he's in violation in some way, the Board can

12 take appropriate action.  But it's not

13 appropriate for this hearing.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Alberti.

15             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Yes.  Yes.  Mr.

16 James, what I ask of you, is just establish

17 the facts.  The Board, please give the Board

18 credit for some intelligence.  We can piece

19 the pieces of facts together and complete the

20 puzzle.  You can bring them, you can tell us

21 how to piece them together in your summation,

22 just present the facts.  I am willing to
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1 listen to the facts and decide later if

2 they're relevant, because I don't know where

3 you're going.  But just, let's keep this

4 moving and present --

5             MR. JAMES:  I'm attempting to do

6 so but --

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James --

8             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- and just

9 present the facts.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  You presented the

12 fact that we have a CFO for 62.  That is

13 enough.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That is

15 enough.

16             MEMBER ALBERTI:  You don't need to

17 ask the Board questions as to why it's there.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, I can

19 ask him questions so, which I did, and I

20 wanted to know the relevance of that point,

21 and we have it, the uncertainty.  So now you

22 can --



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 164

1             MR. JAMES:  I feel like I've

2 missed --

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Now you can

4 move on to --

5             (Crosstalk)

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- something

7 else that shows uncertainty, or something that

8 you want us to see and the document.  But not

9 to just go through, you know, the pages of the

10 document.

11             MR. JAMES:  I would just like to

12 state, for the record, that I am trying to be

13 responsive to --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.

15             MR. JAMES:  -- the Board Chair's

16 questions to me.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right,

18 exactly.

19             MR. JAMES:  And I'm also very

20 happy to try to be responsive to every other

21 comment from the Board.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James, I
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1 also want to direct you, your focus, though,

2 is not about another settlement agreement,

3 it's about adverse impact, peace, order, 

4 quiet, peace, order, quiet.  That's what our

5 renewal application's about.

6             MR. JAMES:  The KCA would like to

7 direct the Board to the variety of occupancy

8 numbers associated between the existing

9 Voluntary Agreement, which says 99, Line 7 of

10 the Transfer Application, which says 62, and

11 the certificate of occupancy later in that

12 Transfer Application, which states 150.  The

13 KCA argues that lack of clarity about the

14 number of patrons in relation to the food

15 service requirement can lead to disturbance of

16 the peace, order and quiet by lack of

17 appropriate food service.

18             MR. BIANCO:  I don't want to

19 belabor in any way, but just to --

20             MALE PARTICIPANT:  Just get to the

21 end.

22             MR. BIANCO:  -- clarify the
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1 Settlement Agreement that Mr. James proffered

2 says 199, not 99, directing your attention to

3 the agreement, 199.

4             (Off the record comments)

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  We'll look

6 carefully at all the documents.

7             MR. JAMES:  The final page, this

8 is amendment on the final page that says,

9 actually, that it's 99, so.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, we'll

11 look at that.

12             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Yes, will both, I

13 can't, I can't stand this.  For both parties,

14 we have the documents.  These numbers have

15 been noted over and over again to this Board. 

16 Let's, can we just please move on?  I can

17 read.  I will take notice of all this, I

18 promise you.

19             MR. JAMES:  The next document that

20 the KCA would like to submit to the Board, if

21 I might suggest that it will be KCA Exhibit 2,

22 is an email from ABRA Records Manager, William
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1 Hager, which I won't read to the Board.  And

2 this is a copy for Mr. Bianco.

3             (Off the record comments)

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do you have

5 an objection, Mr. Bianco?

6             MR. BIANCO:  I do object on

7 relevance.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And, Mr.

9 James, would you address the relevance?

10             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

12             MR. JAMES:  So this is an email

13 from the Records Manager of ABRA, indicating

14 that, at least, on July 30th, that the

15 licensee will need to submit a current public

16 space permit and certificate of use.

17             And this relates back to the

18 placard, renewal placard, which I don't have

19 a copy with me.  I thought it would be in the

20 Investigative Report, but I'm sure that the

21 Board has it in its protest file.

22             So that, at least, the time that
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1 the placard went up in, I believe April, or

2 maybe perhaps, around April 2013, there was no

3 permission for a sidewalk caf‚.

4             And until, at least this point, it

5 still was not in place.  I don't know if it's

6 in place now.  I believe Mr. Depinho's

7 testimony indicated that they had the correct

8 permissions.

9             (Off the record comments)

10             MR. JAMES:  Now my point to the

11 Board is that it's not a properly licensed

12 sidewalk caf‚, as far as my ability to look

13 into the records.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right. 

15 Sorry.  I'm just going to --

16             MR. JAMES:  I know it means to the

17 disturbance of the peace, order and quiet when

18 they're serving alcohol without permission on

19 the sidewalk caf‚.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay.

21             MR. BIANCO:  And our objection is

22 that issue isn't before the Board.  And if
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1 there's some defect in my client's licensor

2 regarding --

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

4             MR. BIANCO:  -- the sidewalk caf‚,

5 nobody's told us.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right, I

7 think this isn't that relevant, but I'm going

8 to let it in, it's public record.  So let's

9 move.

10             (Off the record comments)

11             MR. JAMES:  The KCA would like to

12 submit some further documents.  I have four

13 MPD 251 Reports.  And I also have a more

14 extensive Calls for Service.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

16             MR. JAMES:  Would it be fair to

17 submit it all as one?

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That would be

19 good.

20             MR. JAMES:  Or do you want each

21 one separately?

22             MR. BIANCO:  I need to look at it,



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 170

1 but I anticipate an objection, based on

2 authenticity.  I've never seen these before,

3 but I believe he'll bring them in, so subject

4 to my review.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Why

6 don't you review them all at once now?

7             MR. BIANCO:  Okay, I'll read them

8 all.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thanks.

10             (Off the record comments)

11             MR. JAMES:  Would it be fair to

12 call them all Exhibit 3, or shall we --

13             MALE PARTICIPANT:  We have to wait

14 until Mr. Bianco decides whether or not he's

15 going to --

16             (Crosstalk)

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh, let him

18 look at it, and then you can --

19             MR. JAMES:  That's just --

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I don't, I

21 mean, I don't know how many you have there. 

22 I mean, I can do 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, it doesn't
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1 really matter.

2             Or if they're all police reports,

3 we can do, I mean, I don't know how close,

4 extensive they are, I can't -- do you have one

5 for me?

6             MR. BIANCO:  I mean, the run sheet

7 of partial of which was included in the

8 Investigative Report, I have no objection to

9 it.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Can I

11 see them?  I can't really answer these

12 questions without actually looking at them.

13             MR. JAMES:  I have to collate on

14 the spot, you know.  I just received these

15 documents today, even though, from MPD, even

16 though I had requested them in time for the

17 previously scheduled protest matter.

18             (Off the record comments)

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, where

20 are we on this?

21             MR. BIANCO:  I've had the

22 opportunity to review the documents.  As I may
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1 have mentioned previously, the one sheet that

2 has been provided, which is partially included

3 in the Investigative Report, I have no

4 objection to that.  It is what it is, and I

5 think if anything, it helps.  But we don't

6 object to the admission of that --

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right,

8 let's call that KCA Exhibit Number 3, the run

9 sheet.  Okay.

10             MR. BIANCO:  With regard to the

11 four police reports, purportedly, reports that

12 have been provided to him, we would object to

13 all on the general basis that it's not only

14 hearsay, but the representations contained

15 therein are double hearsay.

16             So it contains reports of a police

17 officer of what some other people said

18 involved in an incident I can't cross-examine

19 on this, not to mention it's questionably

20 relevant.

21             More specifically, the first of

22 the four reports is for an event dated 1/10 of
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1 2010, which predates my client's ownership. 

2 So I'd object to all four, and I have a

3 specific objection on the first of the four.

4             (Off the record comments)

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, Mr.

6 James, anything else to say?

7             MR. JAMES:  I see that that is

8 dated, as I said to the Board earlier, these

9 just came into my possession about two hours

10 before this hearing was scheduled to begin.

11             I went through, you know, maybe

12 ten or 15 such reports and narrowed down the

13 ones that seemed to be relevant to the

14 operations.

15             So I'm glad to say, agreed with

16 Mr. Bianco, that that one is not part of,

17 during the tenure of his client's operation. 

18 But the others, they are, and the second one,

19 in which the last three digits of the report

20 number 912.

21             By the way, it's my understanding

22 that the Board does accept hearsay, even
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1 whether the Board categorizes an MPD report as

2 hearsay, but this one reports that someone

3 sitting on the sidewalk caf‚ --

4             MR. BIANCO:  I have an objection

5 pending as to the hearsay nature, and he's

6 going to read --

7             (Crosstalk)

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I know, I'm

9 listening.

10             MR. BIANCO:  -- to the hearsay, we

11 don't have a ruling.  And not only do we

12 object on hearsay, and not only is my

13 understanding that the Court says --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MR. BIANCO:  -- it draws the line

16 at double hearsay representations, and that's

17 what's contained in the report.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, you

19 know what --

20             (Off the record comments)

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I'm just

22 going to say, that these are public records
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1 and the Board does admit documents with

2 hearsay, but gives them the weight that they

3 deserve, which is we certainly take into

4 account that they are hearsay.

5             These are very old.  I mean, not

6 very, but they're fairly old.  They're 2011

7 documents, correct?  Am I looking at them

8 right?

9             MR. JAMES:  2011 and, yes, they

10 are from 2011, but it's during the most recent

11 renewal period, when this --

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

13             MR. JAMES:  -- owner owned the

14 establishment.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  I

16 think we need to move this on, and so they're

17 public records and we'll give them the weight

18 that they --

19             MR. JAMES:  And may I briefly --

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- deserve.

21             MR. JAMES:  So may I just very

22 briefly, for the record, just say what they,
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1 I mean, they do relate directly to the

2 establishment, this is not just --

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.

4             MR. JAMES:  -- something happened

5 on the sidewalk in front.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

7             MR. JAMES:  So 1 talks about a

8 bottle, you know, attempted passing of a

9 bottle from the patio to outside the patio,

10 and a fight ensued.  That was the police

11 report from May 20, 2011.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right.

13             MR. JAMES:  And it was at 1:35

14 a.m., 1:25 a.m.  So these things, the kind of

15 things that happen in Adams Morgan late at

16 night that cause concern to the residents.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  However, all

18 of these are just reports, these are not

19 conclusions, but that states is all, correct? 

20 What do you know?

21             MR. JAMES:  Well it goes to the

22 manner in which the establishment is operated. 
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1 The second one, someone is sitting in front of

2 the establishment.

3             I mean, I'm not positive, but it

4 sounds as if they're sitting on the sidewalk

5 caf‚.  There was some sort of an altercation,

6 you know, a drink was thrown at somebody,

7 someone was struck.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, Mr.

9 James, we can read this, okay?  So you're

10 really not, you're not the witness in this

11 report.

12             MR. JAMES:  Okay, never mind.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So we can do

14 that.

15             MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  I don't

16 know, you know, I don't know what the Board's

17 process is.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No, I just

19 don't want to add to the concern that was

20 expressed without, you know --

21             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  Well I'd like

22 --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What's in

2 here?

3             MR. JAMES:  -- to hear that the

4 Board will read them.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  We will.

6             MR. JAMES:  So just in summation

7 of this part.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

9             MR. JAMES:  of the testimony, is

10 that a quick look through the call runs

11 showed, in front of this address, or

12 associated with this address, eight assault

13 simple, one aggravated assault, and one

14 assault with deadly weapon.

15             To the extent that the Board finds

16 relevance to this association with the

17 address, with the operation of the

18 establishment, we offer this testimony, these

19 exhibits.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, I want

21 to, for the record, identify as KCA Exhibit

22 Number 4, the incident based event reports,
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1 and there are three of them.

2             (Off the record comments)

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Correct?  He

4 removed one.

5             (Off the record comments)

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Here are the

7 three that are in.

8             (Off the record comments)

9             MR. JAMES:  Just sum up, that's

10 where I am now.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Sum up your

12 testimony, or closing argument?

13             MR. JAMES:  Yes, sort of sum up my

14 testimony, closing argument, whatever you want

15 to call it.  I don't --

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Well, if

17 you're going to do testimony, this is your

18 chance.

19             MR. JAMES:  Well, to finish my

20 testimony, we should --

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  No, finish

22 your testimony, okay.
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1             MR. JAMES:  I think will probably

2 be all I wish to say, unless there are Board

3 questions.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right. 

5 Okay.  Cross.

6             (Off the record comments)

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.  Okay. 

8 To sum up your testimony, go ahead.

9             MR. JAMES:  KCA would like to

10 submit a further Exhibit Number 4, which is --

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, Number

12 5.

13             MR. JAMES:  I'm sorry, Number 5.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MR. JAMES:  Which is a proposed

16 settlement agreement, which we would ask the

17 Board to find appropriate, as in an order

18 conditioned from this agreement, that would be

19 more appropriate than the agreement, which is

20 for a different building, which has different

21 capacity numbers, and so forth.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 181

1             MR. JAMES:  That's --

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So it would

3 be for the purpose, if the Board found that it

4 needed to impose conditions to address peace,

5 order and quiet issues, we would look to that

6 document for suggestions?

7             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

9             MR. BIANCO:  But we would --

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do you have

11 an objection to that?

12             MR. BIANCO:  Yes, we do.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

14             MR. BIANCO:  It's by its nature, a

15 settlement document.  And presenting an

16 exhibit that sums up what Mr. James, all in

17 all of what Mr. James' hopes and dreams are in

18 this case.  A traditional --

19             (Off the record comments)

20             MR. BIANCO:  Yes.  It's not

21 appropriate as an exhibit, it has zero

22 evidentiary value.  And it's not relevant to
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1 anything that's before the Board right now.

2             What Mr. James' opinion is, and

3 what conditions he wants on the license, is

4 not relevant.  Not to mention, it was the sole

5 document discussed in settlement.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Did you admit

7 the --

8             (Crosstalk)

9             MR. BIANCO:  It's not appropriate

10 as an exhibit.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Did you show

12 the document to Mr. Bianco?

13             MR. BIANCO:  Yes, we in fact --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, so you

15 --

16             MR. BIANCO:  Yes, we had a

17 mediation over it.  It was the topic of

18 discussion.

19             MR. JAMES:  And he's right.

20             MR. BIANCO:  That's why it's

21 inappropriate.

22             MR. JAMES:  Well, this is revised
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1 from that.  And we have been exchanging

2 discussions about how we might proceed for the

3 last couple of days.  We obviously didn't get

4 there.

5             There is some hope that after this

6 hearing, there might be some further

7 discussion.  But I don't know if that will

8 actually happen, after the way that the

9 hearing is removed from the Applicant's side

10 of things.

11             MR. BIANCO:  We agree that there

12 was settlement discussions.  We agree that

13 there was a working document into settlement

14 discussions.

15             We think that underscores the need

16 to exclude the document that Mr. James wants

17 to admit.  It's a settlement document.  If he

18 wants to admit that, I'd be happy to share

19 with the Board my notes from the settlement

20 discussion.

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

22             MR. BIANCO:  It's just not
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1 appropriate.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right,

3 we'll do all we're inclined to do, but we can

4 hear from other Board Members, and see when we

5 get there.

6             I think it is appropriate.  We

7 have said this before in other renewal

8 hearings, or protest hearings, that it's

9 appropriate for a protestant to propose

10 conditions that they would let the Board

11 consider to address peace, order and quiet.

12             So to me, I think, that part is

13 appropriate.  But it may be that that would

14 need to be taken out of the Settlement

15 Agreement, if we choose to keep the record

16 open for a submittal, for that.

17             Provided, and I would just say

18 this, if we did that, that you knew exactly

19 what was coming in, so that there wouldn't be

20 some surprise.  But I mean, if he's just going

21 to put in proposed conditions, or you could

22 read it into the record, actually.
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1             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Madam --

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  If that's

3 preferable.  What?

4             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Madam Chair.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What?

6             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  I frequently

7 ask Protestants in a case, what do you really

8 want?

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  What do you

10 want?  Right.

11             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  What's your

12 biggest concern, if you had to pick one thing? 

13 And those questions that are not uncommonly

14 asked, and they do not bear upon negotiations,

15 which are absolutely off limits to us.  And I

16 might be willing to ask that question.  And I

17 would hope that Mr. James would take that into

18 account.

19             (Off the record comments)

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So I think

21 what --

22             (Off the record comments)
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh, go ahead.

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I think Mr.

3 Silverstein just alluded to the fact, that the

4 Board often asked that question, all right? 

5 And I think that that's appropriate.

6             And would anyone have any

7 objections to us considering testimony that

8 was brought in through those questions? 

9 However --

10             MR. BIANCO:  No objection to that.

11             MEMBER ALBERTI:  However, I have

12 to take note of Mr. Bianco's statements that

13 this was a document that was shared during the

14 mediation.

15             And as such, I would tend to air

16 on the side of excluding it as a piece of

17 evidence.  And if one of the Board Members

18 wants to ask Mr. James what conditions he

19 would like, they are free to do so.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, what I

21 say is we're, okay --

22             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Mr. James,
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1 would you --

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Wait, wait a

3 second.

4             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No, whoa, whoa,

5 whoa, whoa.

6             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  We're a

7 little bit, we're way --

8             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  No.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- kind of

10 out of order here.  So I just want to say,

11 that he should, he can do that later though,

12 we're not even at the Board --

13             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  I'd ask him

14 if he would withdraw the document.

15             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Well, let the

16 Chair do that.

17             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Okay.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I was just

19 about to say, I would choose not to admit it

20 into evidence, at this point.  And then we can

21 deal with the question of your putting into

22 evidence, into testimony, or whatever, you
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1 know, the answers to that question, what do

2 you want to address peace, order and quiet,

3 which is the point of this hearing.

4             MR. JAMES:  It's, well, I believe

5 it's the one question I would, I sometimes

6 feel a little difficulty in seeing how to

7 proceed, because there are further questions

8 coming forward --

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

10             MR. JAMES:  -- without a direct

11 order from Chair.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right,

13 let me tell --

14             MR. JAMES:  Not order, but you

15 know.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  -- you have

17 two --

18             MR. JAMES:  So I'm not sure if

19 there any other questions, so that I can react

20 to them --

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

22             MR. JAMES:  -- properly and not
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1 have to speak, you know, more and more times.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  This is where

3 we're at.

4             MR. JAMES:  Okay.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  You're still

6 in your testimony.

7             MR. JAMES:  All right.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So having

9 heard what you've heard from us, you can

10 finish up your testimony, by putting in that

11 information about, you know, what is it that

12 you want, to put on the record.

13             We won't take in the Settlement

14 Agreement, whatever concepts are in there that

15 you want to testify to now, you can. 

16 Otherwise, I'm sure Board Member Silverstein

17 will ask you later, what is it you want?

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  So have we --

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do what?

20             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Do we have a

21 ruling on the objection?  There's an objection

22 on --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes.  Yes, I

2 --

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- I think before

4 us, so do we have a ruling on it?

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I did rule on

6 it.  Yes, I did.

7             MALE PARTICIPANT:  What was the

8 ruling?

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  What's the

10 ruling?

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  The ruling

12 was, I'm not going to accept that into

13 evidence.  Because I don't --

14             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay, thank you.

15             (Chorus of thank you)

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  So --

17             MR. JAMES:  Based upon that

18 ruling, I would like to just finish my

19 testimony by stating, that the KCA would like

20 to suggest conditions for a Board order.

21             If the Board would grant some

22 short period of additional time, for me to
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1 separate those into a communication to the

2 Board, that's not in the form of a Voluntary

3 Agreement.  But I'm happy to, like --

4             (Off the record comments)

5             MR. JAMES:  -- because Mr.

6 Silverstein --

7             (Off the record comments)

8             MR. JAMES:  -- said, what is the

9 one thing you want?

10             (Crosstalk)

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, okay,

12 okay.

13             (Crosstalk)

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  See, I threw

15 out a couple ideas, and I can already hear the

16 Board Members saying, no we don't.  They don't

17 usually do that, allow you to go another shot,

18 after this hearing, to put it in writing.

19             So what I would suggest, and I

20 think there's agreement on, is you can orally

21 today testify, read any condition that you may

22 have into the record as a proposal.  We're
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1 just not going to accept that Settlement

2 Agreement in that form.

3             (Off the record comments)

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  We can give

5 you, do you need a few minutes?  You know, we

6 can take a break, or whatever.

7             MR. BIANCO:  Members of the Board,

8 for the sake of simplicity, use the document. 

9 I withdraw my --

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  You shouldn't

11 object.

12             MR. BIANCO:  I'll withdraw my

13 objection.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MR. BIANCO:  I'm confident the

16 Board will give it the weight it deserves.  I

17 don't want to sit here and listen --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

19             MR. BIANCO:  -- and have him read

20 through the entire thing, just take the

21 document, we'll move on.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.
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1             MR. JAMES:  I appreciate that, Mr.

2 Bianco.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do you have

4 an objection, Mr. Jones?

5             MEMBER JONES:  I respect and

6 appreciate your desire to expeditiously move

7 this process along.  But I remain silent,

8 based on my consideration of the fact that the

9 objection was going to be accepted.

10             Because I am concerned about

11 crossing that line of admitting, or bringing

12 in documents that were specifically discussed

13 during mediation, specifically related to this

14 case.

15             I do not feel comfortable, and do

16 not think it's appropriate for us to do so,

17 given that we are well-aware of the fact that

18 this was a document specifically, or a version

19 of said document, that was specifically

20 reviewed by both parties, as part of their

21 private mediation activities.

22             I think once we start crossing
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1 that and going down that slope, it's a very

2 slippery slope that we do not wish to engage

3 in.

4             The individual, the protestant, if

5 they have issues, they can speak on them.  If

6 they do not, then they can remain silent. 

7 That is not for us to mandate, or dictate,

8 that they do, or do not, have concerns.  They

9 can address a question however as they see

10 fit.

11             But I do not feel comfortable, and

12 would advise against, as an individual Board

13 Member, that we accept this document that was

14 used, specifically, as we've been told it has

15 been used, in the purpose of mediation.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  And Mr.

17 Alberti?

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I will second

19 that sentiment.  I also have concerns.  And I

20 will note, that the protestant has, in the

21 time allotted, which is an hour-and-a-half,

22 wants to take up their time to read whatever
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1 he wants to read.

2             But, you know, if he needs time to

3 sit there and pause and read through a

4 document, that's time he's taking up in his

5 testimony.

6             But he does have an

7 hour-and-a-half in which to testify.  And I

8 will note, that this hearing was scheduled for

9 an earlier date, so I expect both parties to

10 come prepared.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I want to

12 note that, legally, if the one party waives,

13 you know, their right to have the Settlement

14 Agreement, you know, not come in, then I don't

15 see a problem with that, at all.  I mean, it's

16 just, they're the ones that should be

17 concerned.  I don't know why Board Members

18 should be concerned.

19             MEMBER ALBERTI:  So I'm wondering

20 what's being waived here, is Mr. Bianco --

21             MR. BIANCO:  I withdrew --

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Wait.  Mr.
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1 Bianco, let me ask you, are you waiving all

2 privilege on the discussions that took place

3 in the mediation?

4             MR. BIANCO:  I'm not.  I'm not.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  The

6 discussions?  We're not talking about

7 discussions.

8             MR. BIANCO:  I am withdrawing my

9 objection to the admission of the documents

10 only.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

12             MEMBER ALBERTI:  But you're not

13 waiving your privilege of confidentiality,

14 with respect to what occurred, or was said in

15 mediation?

16             MR. BIANCO:  Well, it's my

17 understanding that the settlement issue is an

18 evidentiary rule and not a privilege.  So with

19 regard to this document, I'm not asserting my

20 right to exclude certain evidence.

21             But I'm not broadly waiving any

22 privilege, or nor am I waiving future



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 197

1 objection to invocation of the evidentiary

2 rule prohibiting settlement discussions as

3 evidence.

4             (Off the record comments)

5             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Having heard

6 that, I have concerns about admitting this. 

7 We can vote on it.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh, God.

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  You can make a

10 motion and we can vote on it.

11             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Madam Chair,

12 I'd like to move that we deny the admission of

13 this document, because it was part of the

14 negotiation process and is beyond our purview.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Is

16 there a second?  Is there a second?

17             MEMBER JONES:  I second it.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Those

19 in favor of the motion, say aye.

20             (Chorus of ayes)

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Those

22 opposed?  Opposed.  Okay.  Motion passes
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1 4-1-0.  Okay, how much time does Mr. James

2 have to read, Mr. Jones, do you know?

3             MEMBER JONES:  I do not.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay,

5 so this --

6             MR. JAMES:  Thank you for the

7 direction.  I do feel a little at a loss, as

8 to how to proceed, when I'm hearing numerous

9 different points of view as to this.

10             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That's right.

11             MR. JAMES:  And I'm not a trained

12 lawyer, I'm just trying to --

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

14             MR. JAMES:  -- present a case, as

15 quickly as possible.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I understand.

17             MR. JAMES:  So I apologize --

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James.

19             MR. JAMES:  -- if the Board

20 Members feel that I was not prepared.  I did

21 the best that I could, and I'll try to make

22 this very brief.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Look, Mr.

2 Jones, I mean Mr. James.  I don't feel that

3 you weren't prepared, okay?  And yes, there

4 are conflicting views, and so I just want you

5 to understand where you are now.  You can't

6 submit the document into evidence.  You have

7 time that's allotted to you.  You can testify.

8             You can read any condition that

9 you want the Board to consider, that goes, you

10 know, that you think is relevant to peace,

11 order, quiet, that you want us to consider in

12 an order, in this case.  Instead of the

13 document, it would be what you put into

14 evidence, verbally, now.

15             MR. JAMES:  So the KCA would

16 attempt to convince the Board, through its

17 observation of the existing Voluntary

18 Agreement, that that is not a useful document

19 for enforcement purposes.

20             It applies to a different

21 building.  It has different occupancy numbers,

22 than the number where the restaurant actually
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1 operates.

2             Many of the provisions, we'd be

3 quite happy to have, but the ones that seem to

4 be most important to this licensee's

5 operation, are the ones governed by capacity.

6             And due to the previous

7 operations, in the same building that led to

8 a license revocation, the KCA wants to not see

9 that happen again.

10             We wish the licensee to be

11 successful in his building, and therefore, we

12 ask that the Board accept a capacity for

13 inside occupancy of 62 persons, per computing

14 the restaurant's per seat food sales under

15 D.C. Official Code 25-113(b)(3)(B)(i)(I).

16             Further, we would request that the

17 Board incorporate into an order, language or

18 a statement showing that there is an

19 appropriately licensed sidewalk caf‚.  We also

20 ask that it conform to the ANC Policy on

21 sidewalk caf‚ size.

22             And we also ask simply that live
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1 entertainment within 15 minutes before closing

2 each night of operation, and that the

3 Applicant be allowed to operate until 4:00

4 a.m. on New Year's Eve.

5             And that a provision that says,

6 the noise from inside will not be audible at

7 surrounding residences, be included.  That is

8 all I have to offer.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Thank

10 you.  All right, now we have cross.

11             (Off the record comments)

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Do we have

13 cross?

14             MR. BIANCO:  We do.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

16             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to try to

17 keep it very focused and very brief.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

19             MR. BIANCO:  There's only one

20 issue I really want to inquire into, which I

21 think is the only thing that's relevant here. 

22 Mr. James, you were present at the Kalorama
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1 Citizens' Association meeting on April the

2 18th, where the vote was taken to protest this

3 renewal, correct?

4             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

5             MR. BIANCO:  And did you propose

6 the particular language of the protest?

7             MR. JAMES:  Yes, I did, and a

8 resolution.

9             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And you've

10 been the President of the Kalorama Citizens'

11 Association for quite some time, correct?

12             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

13             MR. BIANCO:  How long?

14             MR. JAMES:  I believe it's nine

15 years now.

16             MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And to the

17 best of my recollection, and you can correct

18 me if I'm wrong, in some cases over those nine

19 years, the KCA has taken the position that it

20 unequivocally opposes the issuance of a

21 license, under no conditions will it agree

22 that a license should issue, or be modified,
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1 or be renewed, correct?

2             MR. JAMES:  To modification, yes,

3 but otherwise, no.  We, KCA is almost always

4 seeking to, you know, come to terms with an

5 Applicant.  But in some cases of a substantial

6 change request, we, you know, are very much

7 opposed to some of those that come along.

8             MR. BIANCO:  And this is not one

9 of those cases where you unequivocally oppose

10 the renewal of its license, correct?

11             MR. JAMES:  That's correct.

12             MR. BIANCO:  And if I understand

13 the language of the resolution that you

14 selected, specifically, your issue was really

15 with the language of the old Voluntary

16 Agreement that they're operating under,

17 correct?

18             MR. JAMES:  That's correct.

19             MR. BIANCO:  So --

20             MR. JAMES:  If I might say, just

21 because we think that it's going to lead to

22 lack of enforcement, because it doesn't even
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1 relate to the same address and it's got a

2 different name associated with it.

3             MR. BIANCO:  So you don't

4 necessarily have a problem with the

5 operations, you have a problem with the

6 language in the agreement that exists?

7             MR. JAMES:  As I learn more about

8 the case, I'm concerned about the

9 establishment meeting its food requirements,

10 but you're correct, and it's handling of

11 noise, but other than that, your statement is

12 accurate.

13             MR. BIANCO:  Thank you, Mr. James,

14 I have no further questions.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Board

16 questions?  Okay.

17             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  I got

18 questions of Mr. --

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James, do

20 you want to --

21             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Mr. James,

22 talk to me in common English.  This is one of



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 205

1 those things that I often do ask protestants. 

2 Put them in the top three, assuming you don't

3 win this protest, what do you need?

4             What do you need for peace, order

5 and quiet?  What are the things, specific

6 physical things, start with one of those that

7 you need to, as you would put it, protect the

8 neighborhood?

9             MR. JAMES:  The sound provision,

10 with the noise provision, that I mentioned,

11 that the sounds from the establishment not be

12 audible in residential, noise from inside will

13 not be audible at surrounding residences. 

14 There are residences in this mixed use zone,

15 nearby.

16             I don't know if the Board believes

17 that food service is something that helps make

18 a restaurant appropriate in a location.  And

19 if it's found appropriate, then it's most

20 likely not disturbing the peace, order and

21 quiet, which is one of the appropriateness

22 requirements.
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1             So if a restaurant is busy making

2 the food and serving the food that it needs,

3 to meet its statutory requirements, then its

4 patrons are much more likely to have had some

5 food, much less likely to be drunk,

6 boisterous, loud, et cetera.

7             So we think that that provision

8 that I mentioned about the number, which is

9 something that is in the Applicant's own

10 applications, 62 persons for seating, would be

11 an appropriate number allowed inside the

12 establishment.  So that's something that's

13 very important.

14             And the thing that is most

15 prominent about any restaurant with a sidewalk

16 caf‚, is the sidewalk caf‚.  That's how it

17 presents itself, puts itself out there to the

18 world, you know, during the time that it's

19 operating, which in D.C. is a fairly long

20 season.

21             And the lack of, apparent, lack of

22 compliance, I don't know, you know, what's
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1 happened in the last month or so, as to the

2 licensing on this.

3             We went through a huge street

4 scape project in Adams Morgan, rebuilt the

5 street, and added wider sidewalks.  And

6 there's been intense community scrutiny and

7 effort put to keeping a clear passageway, of

8 a certain size, and, generally, you know,

9 making sure that everything about the

10 licensing of these various sidewalk caf‚s is

11 in order.

12             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Okay.

13             MR. JAMES:  And from what I was

14 able to learn, this has not been the case in

15 this establishment.  So the items that I

16 mentioned --

17             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Thank you.

18             MR. JAMES:  -- previously, to do

19 with that, would be the third one.  I

20 appreciate the question.

21             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  Thank you. 

22 No further questions.
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Jones.

2             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, and just to

3 make sure I'm clear, and to clarify, your

4 number one point was, make sure sounds can't

5 be heard in residential residences in the

6 surrounding area.  That was your number one

7 point.

8             So just to make sure I'm clear, in

9 your response to Board Member Silverstein's

10 question, where he asked you to rank them in

11 priority order, that that was your number one

12 concern?

13             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

14             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Given that,

15 do you have any reason to know, factually,

16 that noise from this establishment can be

17 heard in neighboring residences?

18             MR. JAMES:  Well, the one witness,

19 which we hoped to present.

20             MEMBER JONES:  Yes.

21             MR. JAMES:  Who was available at

22 the previous hearing date, that was --
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1             (Crosstalk)

2             MEMBER JONES:  Understood.

3             MR. JAMES:  But is not now.

4             MEMBER JONES:  Yes.

5             MR. JAMES:  Lives just two doors

6 away, over her shop, and was prepared to

7 describe how she is disturbed by Bossa's

8 sound.

9             MEMBER JONES:  Okay, so am I to

10 take, can I take from what you just said, and

11 in response to my question, that you have

12 knowledge of, through a individual, who is a

13 resident near this licensed establishment --

14             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

15             MEMBER JONES:  -- that that

16 individual has communicated to you, directly

17 --

18             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

19             MEMBER JONES:  -- that they have

20 been disturbed by music emanating from this

21 particular licensed establishment?

22             MR. JAMES:  Music and noise.
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1             MEMBER JONES:  Music and noise

2 from --

3             MR. JAMES:  Not just --

4             MEMBER JONES:  -- this licensed

5 establishment.

6             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

7             MEMBER JONES:  Yes?

8             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

9             MEMBER JONES:  Okay.  Thank you. 

10 Thank you, Madam Chair.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. James, a

12 lot of your testimony has been about this

13 Settlement Agreement that's in the record,

14 that has problems with it, wrong address, or

15 whatever, how has that interfered with

16 enforcement in the last few years?

17             MR. JAMES:  I believe it

18 introduced great confusion to anybody, any

19 ABRA investigator.  There is still an

20 establishment called the Ghana Caf‚, it's in

21 a different ward on 14th Street.

22             So if an ABRA investigator were to
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1 say, you know, if he went to say, where's the

2 Voluntary Agreement on Bossa, we need to

3 enforce that, well there's not one in that

4 name, you know.

5             And I think that may very well

6 contribute to the very skimpy investigative

7 history.  That there was only one item

8 mentioned on that investigative history.  And

9 yet, I presented what is in the public record,

10 these reports.

11             And you know, some facts have been

12 disclosed, during the various testimony today. 

13 And that, one would think, there would be more

14 scrutiny of a restaurant with an entertainment

15 endorsement in Adams Morgan.

16             And it occurs to me that, you

17 know, because there's not a voluntary, or a

18 Settlement Agreement, called Bossa, in the

19 files.  But there is one for the Ghana Caf‚

20 that is now owned by Bossa.  That it's a

21 matter of confusion.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.
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1             MR. JAMES:  And the fact that it's

2 quite an old agreement, and was only purchased

3 so that the business could continue, you know,

4 is that the agreement was attached to this

5 license.

6             It's not an uncommon thing in

7 Adams Morgan, and I'm sure, you know, in other

8 parts of the city, for the parties to get

9 together and, you know, come up with a new

10 agreement.  We do this frequently.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Well,

12 my final question is, the number 62, goes to

13 what?  Sixty-two goes to what, what number is

14 that for?

15             MR. JAMES:  That would be the

16 number of seats that the Applicant, well, here

17 I'm not sure that I can speak, but I'll give

18 it a try.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  You are

20 proposing that 62 be used for something.

21             MR. JAMES:  Yes.  Well, a, because

22 it's the number cited in the Applicant's
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1 Transfer Application.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  For what,

3 though?  The number cited for what?

4             MR. JAMES:  It says seats.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Seats.  Okay. 

6 Thank you.

7             MR. JAMES:  It doesn't say

8 occupancy, it says seats.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Oh.

10             MR. JAMES:  And --

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

12             MR. JAMES:  -- from the prior

13 hearing of the revocation hearing transcript,

14 that was the number that was stated as,

15 there's this number of seats in the

16 establishment of Bossa, 62.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  That should

18 be used, as opposed to what?

19             MR. JAMES:  Well, the certificate

20 of occupancy says 150.

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Is

22 there another reason why it's the number to



202-234-4433
Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.

Page 214

1 use, besides it being in the Transfer

2 Application?

3             MR. JAMES:  I believe that there's

4 a reason it will be extremely beneficial to

5 the applicant, and that's that they'd have a

6 lower food burden to meet.

7             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  But is there

8 a reason related to peace, order, quiet?

9             MR. JAMES:  I stated previously,

10 the KCA, through much experience and

11 observation in the neighborhood, finds that

12 restaurant that are busy serving food, are

13 much less likely to cause --

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

15             MR. JAMES:  -- disturbance in the

16 peace, order and quiet.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Got it. 

18 Thank you.  Okay.  All right, any other Board

19 questions?

20             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I have a real

21 quick question.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Yes, Mr.
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1 Alberti.

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Mr. James, you

3 made reference to the address that's on this

4 Voluntary Agreement, and the one that list the

5 establishment as Ghana Caf‚, all right?  Get

6 that for a second, so we identify what we're

7 talking about.

8             You raised some issue about the

9 address listed on this Settlement Agreement,

10 which is 2465 18th Street, N.W.  And I believe

11 you raised that because the address of this

12 establishment is 2463 18th Street, N.W.  All

13 right.

14             Well, my question to you is, this

15 Voluntary Agreement, which is attached to the

16 Investigative Report, which has you as a

17 signatory, is that correct, that it has you as

18 a signatory?

19             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

20             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Is this the

21 Voluntary Agreement that you believe is in

22 effect for this establishment?
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1             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

2             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Do you have any

3 objection to it being in effect for this

4 establishment, other than the concerns that

5 you expressed today?

6             Do you have any administrative

7 objections, that there's an error on

8 record-keeping part, or something?  Do you

9 have any reason to believe there's some

10 administrative error that would point to this

11 not being the Voluntary Agreement, or

12 Settlement Agreement?

13             MR. JAMES:  I don't, as to

14 administrative error, meaning that ABRA or the

15 Board has made some sort of a mistake?

16             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Well you made

17 reference to the address, all right?  So I'm

18 asking you, you know, so I'm trying to figure

19 out why you made reference to the address.

20             Is there some reason you believe

21 that there's an administrative mistake that

22 would point to this not being the appropriate,
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1 not being the Settlement Agreement that KCA

2 entered into with the licensee, at the time

3 that this was signed for the establishment,

4 okay, for the address at 2463 18th Street,

5 N.W.?

6             MR. JAMES:  No, it's not.  It's

7 not anything to do with 2463, this Agreement

8 has to do with 2465.  And it talks about the

9 use of the second floor, and the third floor

10 in a different building, than this

11 establishment's current location.

12             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay, so was this

13 Settlement Agreement ever, to your knowledge

14 and concession, was this, to your knowledge,

15 was it your intent that this Voluntary

16 Agreement you see before us, ever to apply to

17 a restaurant that was one time known as Bossa?

18             MR. JAMES:  Okay.  No, this is to

19 do with the Ghana Caf‚, a totally different

20 establishment that went out of business in

21 Adams Morgan.

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Well, wait, wait,
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1 wait, now.

2             MR. JAMES:  Oh, I'm sorry.

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  It has to do with

4 a totally different license that, look, it

5 doesn't have to do with a license issue with

6 Bossa, it has to do with another license, is

7 that your belief?

8             MR. JAMES:  Oh, it's absolutely

9 certain.  The license number is shown, the

10 previous license number for Bossa, that was

11 revoked, is a different license number.  This

12 was a neighboring business.  The building is

13 now empty, vacant rather.

14             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I heard that

15 before, so I'll take that as an affirmative. 

16 Okay.  I shouldn't ask this about a license. 

17 Why didn't you argue that?  I mean, why are

18 you arguing about number of seats?

19             MR. JAMES:  About this, I know I

20 argued --

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Why are you

22 arguing about a number of seats in this
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1 Voluntary Agreement, if you believe that it's

2 the wrong voluntary agreement for this

3 establishment?

4             MR. JAMES:  I was attempting to

5 bring that out when Mr. Depinho was on the

6 stand, but I was getting various signals from

7 the Board about what I was allowed to talk

8 about.

9             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay.  But you do

10 feel that the -- never mind.

11             MR. JAMES:  I think --

12             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I have no further

13 questions.  Thank you, Mr. James.

14             MR. JAMES:  Appreciate it.

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I think the

16 topic here is peace, order, quiet, but on the

17 other hand there is this question that keeps

18 coming up about the Settlement Agreement.  And

19 it's probably not relevant to our decision on

20 the renewal.

21             But I would like to understand

22 your position on this Settlement Agreement,
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1 which has a different address for Ghana Caf‚. 

2 Do you think this, in your view, does that

3 Settlement Agreement govern Bossa Bistro?

4             MR. JAMES:  Well, it does,

5 certainly, if it's known, you know?  It's sort

6 of hidden away.  You know what I mean?  How do

7 the investigators relate it to the

8 establishment?  That's all.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So is

10 it that, if it's in ABRA's files and it's with

11 their license, you don't have a question that

12 it controls, your question is, it's confusing

13 for an investigator?

14             MR. JAMES:  That's one of the main

15 points, yes.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Or something

17 like that.

18             MR. JAMES:  But it's also to do

19 with a different building, with different

20 floors that were used in a different manner

21 than this building --

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.
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1             MR. JAMES:  -- where this license

2 is located now.

3             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  So is

4 your position that it controls, but it

5 shouldn't?  Or obviously, because you want it

6 to be changed to accurately reflect --

7             MR. JAMES:  It controls in an

8 ineffective manner, because --

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

10             MR. JAMES:  -- of the things that

11 it says about the second floor, and what can

12 take place there.

13             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.  Okay.

14             MR. JAMES:  And the permissions

15 for entertainment --

16             (Crosstalk)

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Some things

18 don't apply.

19             MR. JAMES:  I believe.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

21             MR. JAMES:  We're trying to get to

22 that in our discussions, but we didn't get
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1 there.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  May I?  Mr.

4 James, I just got two different answers from

5 you.  You are a signature to this?  You are a

6 signature to this?

7             MR. JAMES:  Yes.

8             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Do you agree, or

9 disagree, that this is the Settlement

10 Agreement that controls this license, or not? 

11 As a signature to the Voluntary Agreement

12 that's attached to this VA, are you, I don't

13 care whether you think it's sufficient, or

14 not, does it, or does it not, as a signature

15 to that VA, does it, or does it not, control

16 this license that's before us today, Bossa

17 Bistro?

18             MR. JAMES:  Yes, it does,

19 ineffectively.

20             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

21             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No.  No.  It

22 does, okay?  So it's your understanding that
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1 when -- so what I'm getting from that, in

2 2010, when you signed this, or whenever it was

3 --

4             MR. JAMES:  2000.

5             MEMBER ALBERTI:  2000.  You were

6 signing a voluntary agreement with a license

7 that now sits at 2463, is that your

8 understanding?

9             MR. JAMES:  No.  How could I have

10 known in the Year 2000, that this license

11 would someday migrate next door, under a

12 different --

13             MEMBER ALBERTI:  No, no, no, no,

14 no.

15             (Off the record comments)

16             MR. JAMES:  That's the question

17 you asked.

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  In 2010, okay, in

19 2010 in you signed a voluntary agreement with

20 a license --

21             MR. JAMES:  The Year 2000.

22             MEMBER ALBERTI:  -- all right? 
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1 Right, 2000, all right, you signed, or --

2 okay, is it your understanding, that license

3 now resides at 2463?

4             MR. JAMES:  Yes, I do understand

5 that.

6             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Okay, great. 

7 Thank you.

8             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, other

9 questions?  Questions on Board questions?

10             MR. BIANCO:  I don't have any, no.

11             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  All

12 right, then that concludes your testimony. 

13 And I think that brings us to closings.

14             (Off the record comments)

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Bianco?

16             MR. BIANCO:  I will keep it brief,

17 or as brief as I possibly can.

18             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Closing.

19             MR. BIANCO:  When I --

20             (Off the record comments)

21             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Wait a

22 second.  Excuse me.  We're about to do
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1 closing, I wanted to make sure that you had

2 everyone's attention.

3             MEMBER ALBERTI:  Oh, I'm the same,

4 don't worry.

5             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  All

6 right, Mr. Bianco.

7             MR. BIANCO:  When I first got this

8 case, it looked to me like a very simple case. 

9 We had a case with a KCA protest of a licensee

10 that didn't have any violations in the

11 licensor period, no ANC protests, and oh, by

12 the way, ABC's own investigator looks at the

13 property and says this doesn't adversely

14 impact the peace, order and quiet.  It

15 basically has a bow in on it.

16             So, you know, I think everything

17 that we got into was beside the fact.  The

18 fact is, my client runs a clean establishment. 

19 He's run a clean establishment since he's

20 owned the establishment, and hasn't had any

21 real issues with compliance with the terms and

22 conditions of its licensor.
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1             Additionally, KCA agrees that

2 there's no real operational issues with this

3 particular establishment.  If you look to the

4 language of their resolution, which is

5 contained in their protest letter, what their

6 real issue is, with regard to the wording of

7 the Voluntary Agreement that they inherited

8 when they purchased the license.

9             That's different than peace, order

10 and quiet.  That's, we don't like the language

11 of this agreement, and we think it should

12 change.

13             Well, the law has a process for

14 that.  Modifying voluntary agreements by fewer

15 than all the parties, has to go through the

16 provisions of D.C. Code 25446.

17             It's something that, mostly,

18 applicants go through towards the end of

19 terminating voluntary agreements, but it

20 applies equally to all parties.

21             If Mr. James wants the Voluntary

22 Agreement modified, he has to do so in
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1 accordance with the law, and he has not done

2 that.

3             His objections don't go to peace,

4 order and quiet.  His objections go to, I

5 don't like this Voluntary Agreement.  Well, he

6 hasn't done anything about that, so he doesn't

7 get to bootstrap his, I don't like this

8 Voluntary Agreement argument to the

9 appropriateness of the renewal.

10             This establishment clearly meets

11 the appropriateness standards.  It does not

12 adversely impact the peace, order and quiet of

13 the neighborhood, as is evidenced by the ANC's

14 absence here, as is evidenced by the ABC's own

15 investigator's report.

16             Out of respect for Mr.

17 Silverstein, I'd like to also take a brief

18 minute and go through Mr. James' top three. 

19 And give Mr. Silverstein the benefit of my

20 view of Mr. James' top three.

21             Mr. James' issue number one, this

22 so-called problem with the Certificate of
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1 Occupancy.  It's a red herring, okay?  The

2 agreement that they inherited from the Ghana

3 Caf‚, from the Year 2000, states that the

4 capacity is 99 seats.

5             Well, as some of the Board Members

6 might remember, the significance of the term,

7 99 seats, changed.  That term changed in 2008

8 with the Court of Appeals Decision in 2461

9 Court versus the ABC Board, where the Court of

10 Appeals agreed that a seat is not a person,

11 and that there is a legal distinction between

12 a number of seats and a total capacity.

13             Mr. Depinho's Certificate of

14 Occupancy clearly sets forth that distinction,

15 within the limitations provided in the Year

16 2000 Voluntary Agreement.

17             His Certificate of Occupancy

18 states under usage, a restaurant of 61 seats,

19 with a total capacity of 150 persons.  So it

20 complies with the terms of the Voluntary

21 Agreement, as it's written.

22             Mr. James' number two issue with
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1 his top three, which is the audible nature of

2 the sound from Bossa Bistro in surrounding

3 residences.  He sees this as a problem, and

4 thinks the Board should impose conditions.

5             The Board shouldn't impose

6 conditions.  There's a really simple reason

7 why.  It's in the law.  This is a compliance

8 with law issue.

9             Sound that's audible inside

10 somebody else's residence, emanating from your

11 establishment, is a violation of law.  It can

12 be prosecuted.

13             It won't be prosecuted, and I'll

14 tell you why.  We can look to the ABC Board's

15 own investigator, okay.  He testified that

16 standing 11 feet away from the establishment,

17 he couldn't discern, whether the noise was

18 coming from Mr. Depinho's establishment,

19 Madam's Organ next door, one of the

20 establishments across the street, or one of

21 the 63 other licensed establishments in the

22 immediate vicinity.
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1             There is no way that somebody

2 sitting in their living room, that hears noise

3 coming from 18th Street, someone who has opted

4 to live over a bar on 18th Street, complaining

5 about noise coming from 18th Street, is going

6 to be able to discern which of these 63

7 establishments that noise is coming from, it's

8 just not reality.

9             And finally, is this issue of the

10 sidewalk caf‚.  Again, what we contend to be

11 another red herring.  One of the exhibits that

12 Mr. James insisted on admitting, from the

13 Board's own file, is the original Transfer

14 Application, which very clearly sets forth

15 that the sidewalk caf‚ is part and parcel of

16 that, since the Transfer was granted.

17             If anybody in licensor had any

18 issue, or any question, about our compliance

19 with the particular conditions of the

20 licensor, nobody's told us.  And there's a

21 procedure by which that can happen.

22             And if somebody contends that
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1 there's some document, or documents, missing

2 to our successful completion, or whatever

3 hurdles lie in front of us, then somebody

4 needs to tell us.

5             We'll comply with whatever

6 reasonable and legal conditions there are that

7 we have to comply to.  But up until the date

8 of this hearing, nobody's ever said anything

9 like that.

10             It's outside of the scope of this

11 hearing.  It's an allegation, that if brought

12 forward, will be entitled to due process, the

13 opportunity to address and to correct any

14 deficiencies, that nobody's ever told us

15 exists, based on the reasons that I set forth,

16 sort of, my top three issues, and then my

17 argument on Mr. James' top three issues.

18             We think that this is a very, very

19 clear cut case and a very easy decision, to

20 allow the renewal of this license, without

21 further condition that is already contained in

22 the Voluntary Agreement that exists.  Thank
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1 you.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Thank you. 

3 Mr. James.

4             MR. JAMES:  If the Board wishes to

5 renew the license of an establishment that

6 doesn't have a valid sidewalk caf‚ permit, or

7 that has a confused occupancy for the inside,

8 that for the same exact premise, was unable to

9 satisfy the food requirements under the same

10 name, with one of the same partners, Mr.

11 Robert Culton, you know, I would request that

12 the Board audit the establishment for

13 compliance with the food requirement.

14             To go, magically, from

15 approximately seven percent food service to

16 over 50 percent, in its quarterly food reports

17 now, in a period of one year, is truly

18 stunning.  And my personal observations are,

19 that I very rarely see anybody eating at the

20 establishment.

21             And I, as Mr. Depinho himself

22 said, you often walk by and look inside, or
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1 take a picture.  Well, I do look, I've taken

2 a few pictures, they don't amount to anything,

3 but very rarely is there service of food on

4 the sidewalk caf‚.

5             There's certainly consumption of

6 alcoholic beverages.  I have been in the

7 establishment a few times to talk to Mr.

8 Depinho, not very busy, not much food service

9 going on --

10             MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object,

11 this is additional testimony.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It's not --

13             MR. BIANCO:  He's talking about

14 food service at any point --

15             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  All right,

16 it's not testimony, this is closing, it's not

17 evidence.

18             (Off the record comments)

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It's not,

20 okay, I'm just saying it's not evidence,

21 though.  Do you want to move on, Mr. James?

22             MR. JAMES:  So --
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1             (Off the record comments)

2             MR. JAMES:  I think I've said it. 

3 I think if the Board, we're not saying, that

4 the Board should not renew the license, we're

5 saying that the Board should renew it with a

6 few conditions that would help if they found

7 more appropriate.

8             And just to touch on one of the

9 points that Mr. Bianco just made about the

10 investigator's observation, was that he could

11 clearly hear outside with the doors and

12 windows closed, the sound from inside.

13             So it's not too amazing that if

14 one of those windows was left open, a neighbor

15 two doors away, by the way, does not live over

16 a bar, she lives over the bookstore, which she

17 owns, you know.

18             We're here to give that testimony

19 that I had arranged with her, to do

20 previously, that testimony would be on the

21 record.  I've said everything that I wanted to

22 say --
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1             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

2             MR. JAMES:  -- three different

3 ways.

4             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.

5             MR. JAMES:  I apologize to the

6 Board for taking more time than possibly it

7 should have.  I didn't wish this to be a long

8 hearing.

9             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay, no

10 problem.  At this point I'm going to close the

11 records, ask if the parties want to file for

12 the Board's findings of facts and conclusion

13 of law, or waive their right to do so?

14             MR. BIANCO:  We'll waive.

15             MR. JAMES:  Yes, waive.

16             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Okay.  Okay,

17 then the Board will issue an order within 90

18 days.  And I will read the instructions for

19 having a closed meeting to deliberate this

20 case.

21             As chairperson of the Alcoholic

22 Beverage Control Board for the District of
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1 Columbia, and in accordance with D.C. Official

2 Code Section 2-574(b) of the Open Meetings

3 Act, I move that the ABC Board hold a closed

4 meeting, for the purpose of seeking legal

5 advice from our counsel on Case Number

6 13-PRO-00032, Bossa Brazilian Bistro, pursuant

7 to Section 2-574(b)(4) of the Open Meetings

8 Act, and/or deliberating upon this case for

9 reasons cited in Section 2-574(b)(13) of the

10 Open Meetings Act.  Is there a second?

11             MEMBER BROOKS:  Second.

12             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Brooks

13 has seconded the motion.  I'll now take a roll

14 call vote on the motion before us, now that

15 it's been seconded.  Mr. Brooks?

16             MEMBER BROOKS:  I agree.

17             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr.  Alberti?

18             MEMBER ALBERTI:  I agree.

19             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Ms. Miller

20 agrees.  Mr. Silverstein?

21             MEMBER SILVERSTEIN:  I agree.

22             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Mr. Jones?
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1             MEMBER JONES:  I agree.

2             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  It appears

3 the motion has passed by a vote of 5-0-0.  I

4 hereby give notice that the ABC Board will

5 hold a closed door meeting, today, or if not

6 enough time today, then next week, in the ABC

7 Board conference room, pursuant to Section

8 2-574(b) of the Open Meetings Act.  All right,

9 then that concludes this hearing.  Thank you,

10 very much.

11             MR. BIANCO:  Thank you, Members of

12 the Board, have a nice afternoon, or evening,

13 as the case may be.

14             CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Right.  So

15 that concludes our afternoon hearings, and the

16 Board will recess and come back to do its

17 agenda.

18             (Whereupon, the hearing in the

19 above-entitled matter was concluded at 4:42

20 p.m.)

21

22
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